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NZCU Steelsands
Aucklanag City
Clenbrook
Waiuku

Waikato Region:

ACU

Harmilton

Harmilton-Te Kohao Health
First Credit Union -
Hamilton City
Ngaruowahia

Te Archa

Bay of Plenty
Region:

NZCU Central
Caxton
Kawerau
'Kopeopec
Murupara
Opotiki
Retorua

Te Puke

First Credit Union
Kawerau
Rotorua
Tauranga
Taupo
Whakatane

Manawatu/
~ Wanganui Region:

R LOCATIONS

Whanganui
NZCU Baywide
Palmerston Morth
Whanganui

Wellington Region:

NZCU Baywide

Lower Hutt
Masterton
Porirug
Wainuiomatao
NZ Fire Fighters Credit Union

' Petone

Wairarapa Building Society
Masterton

Nelson Region:

Nelson Building Society
Nelson
Motueka
Richmond
Takoka
NZCU South
Richmond
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Ihe role of the Board is to set the
direction for the erganisation, and
during the year the Co-op Money
NZ Board spent considerable

time with Members to refresh our
strategic plan. This process included
a strong Member consultation
process, including written feedback
and two workshops. The result is

a clearly articulated view of the
oard thinks
is appropriate for this organisation

strategic cheices the

to drive substantive benefit back to

our Member credit unions, together

with a series of strategic initiatives

for the organisation to execute. We

are confident that the strategic plan
adopted is the right plan for the
organisation and will deliver to the

needs of our Member credit unions

s the
changing nature of Co-op Money

The strategic plan reflec

NZ from being on organisation
focused predominantly on providing
products and services to Members,

to an organisation that is completely
focused on delivering value back to
Members through providing products
and services to Members and other

non-credit unicn customers

this end, this year saw the sale of
the insurance business (o Provident
Insurance Corporation Limited in
December 2017. The decision to

sell the insurance business allows
Co-op Money NZ to better serve

its Mernbers by focusing on the
banking and payments sector where
we believe we can belter utilise our
resources and capital to achieve
greater scale economies to improve
value o Members.

The year has also seen the first
three Member migrations to Orgcle
Flexcube (with another in July 2018).
Flexcube is o modern tier one core
banking system to replace the aged
FACTS system Members were

on. This exciting transformational
programme of work is about o "step
change” to help set Members up

for the future to be able to better
leverage the core banking system
and other technology to serve their
membpers.

This year also saw @ change in the
leadership of Co-op Money NZ. After

almost eight yedrs as Chief Executive,

Henry Lynch has left the organisation
ond has been replaced by an internal
appeintment in Jonathon Lee, who
was previously Chief Operating
Officer with Co-op Money NZ.

Henry has made many significant
contributions over his time with us
and | would like to thank him for his
contribution during his tenure.

Al the same time, the Board is
ple dl

promote Jonathan from within for

to hove been able to

this key leadership role 1o lecd the

organisation at this pivotal time for

the organisation.

Since year end, in July, the Board
also appeinted Richard Westlake
as Co-op Money NZ Independent
Director. Richard had been advising
to the Board for the previous twelve
months and it is pleasing to be able
to strengthien the board by bringing
Richard on in this new capacity.

Member unity is a fundamental
necessity for Co-op Money NZ to

pe able to effectively support the
needs of our Membpers. This year
has been difficult with First Credit
Union having chosen to move te
alternative suppliers for the products
and services they had procured
from Co-op Money NZ. Whilst it is
disappointing that collectively we
were not able to work through cur
differences we respect their decision
and wish them well to be successful
for their members,



o been

Q

op Money NZ has
challenged by the complaint to the
Registrar of Friendly Societies and
Credit Unions by Westforce Credit
Union and First Credit Union regarding
our Rules te do with our ability to
provide services to Associates and
third party customers. This was
ultimately decided in the High Court
with the Court finding in our favour
However, the acrimony this caused

together with the financial cc

appealing the Registrar’'s decision

and the loss of momentum Tor Co-op

Money NZ was disappointing.

Propesed changes to the Friendly

Societies and Credit Unions Act
to improve this out-of-date, not fit-

for-purpose legislation also caus

20

a strong divergence in credit union
s. The
changes were ultimately passed by
Parliament in the Friendly Societies

views on the proposed chang

and Credit Unions (Regulatory
Improvements) Amendment Act

2018 and represent a very significant
achievement for the movement after

many, many years of advocating for

these changes. | would like to thank
the MP for Kaikoura, Stuart Smith,

for all his

forts in presenting and

champicning this legislation through
the House for us.

Looking ahead, Member Unity is
critical for Co-op Money NZ to be

able to live up to the expectations

of our Members. Rebuilding

s and trust is

Member relationst

o fundamental deliverable for all

af us to work on, and everyo

Co-op Money NZ from the Board to
management and staff are all 100%
focused on achieving this.

Looking back on the achievements
over the year, itis clear to me that
together we gre stronger - credit
unions working together to ultimately

orovide compelling value propositions
to their members all acress the
country. Co-op Money NZ plays
a very valuable role in the credit

this value for Members in o wider

union eco-system in generatir

4

dynamic and competitive financial

services environment where

increasingly becoming necessary to
provide the products ana services
expected from the New Zealand
consumer togay.

Ciaire Matthews
Chair




This year has marked an inflection
point in Co-op Money NZ's history as
we begin to reshape our business

to be fit-for-purpose to mest our
Members' needs for the future. During
the year we have had a number of
challenges which have not been easy
for our Members or for Co-op Money
NZ. However, through this we have
also delivered o number of significant
achievements that we can all be very

proud of.

From a group perspective, Co-

op Money NZ and its subsidiaries
incurred a group loss for the year
ended 30 June 2018 of $2,391,000,
compadred to a restated 2016/7
surplus of $3.000. The accounts

in 2018/7 were restoted to reflect
an issue in our Co-op Insurance

NZ results which saw premiums
(and debtors) overstated due to an
¢

accounting reconciliation issue. KPMG

s brought in to review this issu

wal
which resulted in a $1.2m downward
adjustment to the Co-op Insurance
NZ result for that year.

This Group reflects increased costs
associated with our High Court
appeal and in advocating for the

8]

honges to the Friendly Societies and
Credit Union Act, as well as the loss
of revenue from a Member during the

)

year whilst at the same time a delay
in acquiring new business due to the
challenge to cur Rules. The loss also
refiects a timing difference as, under
accounting standards, the recognition
of profit from the sale of the insurance
business will be recognised in the
coming financial year

Following a complaint to the Registrar
of Friendly Societies and Credit
Unions by two Members (one of which
is no lenger a Member), in November
2016 the Registrar formed the view
that Co-op Money NZ could not
provide products and Services to
Associates. This decision would hove
severely limited the ability of Co-op
Money NZ to replace revenue lost

by these Members going elsewhere
for products and services previously
provided by Co-op Money NZ.

Co-op Money NZ successfully
appealed this decision in the High
Court with the decision being
announced in November 2017, aimaost
a year from the Registrar’s original
ruling, In her decision in the High
Court, Justice Thomas noted that
the evidence demonstrated that
‘Co-op Money NZ's members derive
significant benefit from services
delivered to Associates and third
parties” The length of time and effort

to resolve this matter, however, came
at o financial cost and slowed down
cur ability to generate new business
revenue both of which have affected
the 2017/8 financial result.

The year has alse seen the rollout of
a new tier ane core banking platform,
Oracle Flexcubse, for three of our
Member credit unions during the year
with another credit union going live
mid-July and a fifth in the beginning
of September. This is a phenemenal
result and | would like to acknowledge
the tremendous level of cooperation
and effort invested by our Member
credit unions, the Co-op Money NZ
tearn and the Orocle team (enshore
and offshore) Lo achieve this result.

Oracle Flexcube replaces our oid core
banking system, FACTS, which we had
been running for over 30 years prior
to this, and is a transformational leap
forwards te provide a foundation for
our Members to continue lo innovate
and enhance volue to their members
Our focus in this coming year isto
rigrate the rest of our Members
acress to the platform and to then
work with our Members so they can
leverage this greater capability into
specific member benefits and value.

Since its first reading in the

House on 7 June 2017 we have
continued to support the passage
of the Friendly Societies and Credit
Unions (Regulatory Improvements)




Amendment Bill through Parliament
The Bill was referred to the Findnce
and Expenditure Select Commilttee.
The Commitiee received twenty
submissions both for and against
the Bill aind/or provisions within the
Bill, including from Co-op Money

NZ and a number of credit unions
and supporters. Co-op Money NZ
and some of these credil unions
and supporters also presented ot
the Select Committee hearings held
acress three sessions in December
2017. Changes were made during this
Committee stage for the betterment
of the Bill and it was introduced back
into the House on 4 May 2018. The

8ill was passed unanimously at its
second reading on 18 May 2018 and
again unanimously at its third reading

on 27 June with Royal assent received

on 4 July 2018.

This achievement marks many
years of advocacy for changes

to the Act for our Membersand
modernises this oul-of-date, not-
fit-for-purpose legislation. Among
other things, the amendrments to the
Act remove unnecessary cperating
and compliance costs and promote
greater efficiency, innovation, and

accountability. The changes when

implemented will also mean credit
iy
expand their services to include

unions will be able to more ec

lending to small and medium sized

enterprises related to their members

The Act changes also remove
ambiguity, and allow Co-cp Money

NZ to evolve in g manner so it can

continue to support the needs of

Member credit unions.

| would like to thank Stuart Smith, the
MP for Kaikoura, for irwr_roducf\rwq the
Bill and for his skill and passion at
navigating this Bill Lh'fuugﬁ Parliarment
with crass party support and over

change in Government.

After rmany years of operating in
the insurance space. in 2017 Co-op
Money NZ made the strategic decision

to exit the insurance market to focus

on bonking ond payments services

where capital may be more effectively

deployed and leveraged

We had established a great working
relationship with our business
partner, Pravident Insurance, over
recent years and the insurance book
was subsequently sold to them in
December 2017. We have been
working with Provident (and their
underwriter for the life business,
Pinnacle Life) since then to obtain
approval fram the Reserve Bank

to transfer our insurance books
(Carminder, Loanminder and Funeral
Pian policies, together with motor
vehicle policies generated through the
Provident channel) across to these
insurers. Reserve Bank approval has
taken longer than we would have liked

t both applications to them were

approved post-balance date and we
nave since transferred these insurance
pbooks to Provigent and Pinnacle

| would like to tcke this opportunity to
ank those Members that supported
h

Distribution agreements with Co-op

this sale through signing Insurance

Insurance N7 to establish the value

ess that was sold. | would
also like to acknowledge and thank the
NZ team for all their

in the busin

Co-op Insurance
efferts working with Members over the
years, and for their professionalism
during the transfer process

While there is still a lot of work cheod
with Members to agree and shape
Co-op Money NZ into the business that
Members need to support their own
credit unions, it is still an exciting time
We have empowering legisiation in
place that can create strong growth
apportunities into SME lending for those
credit unions that wish to, anew core
banking system in the process of being
rolled out to support Members' needs
into the future, clarity over Co-op Money
NZ's ability to provide services to non-
Members and a clear focus on where
Co-op Money NZ can best leverage
scale to the benefit of its Members.

I would like to thank the fantastic
team at Co-op Money NZ for all their
ard work and dedication this year

in delivering the results they have

for Members, to our Board for their
support, trust, and direction, and 1o
our Members for their commitment to
Co-op Money NZ and the philoseophy
that underpins Co-op Money NZ—
that by cooperating tegether our
Member credit unions can achieve so

=

much more.

Jonathan Lee

Chief Executive Officer
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Board & Governance

Unless apparent from the context or

otherwise noted, references to Co-op
p Money NZ

ding its subsidiaries.

loney NZ refer to the Co-

Group, inclu

There are procedures designed by Co-

op Money NZ to:

- Ensure that strategic guidance and

effective overssgm of management is

provided by the Beard

« Clarify the respective roles and
responsibilities of Board members
and senjor executives in order to
facilitate Board and management
accountability to both Co-op Money
NZ and its Member credit uniens

+ Ensure that no single individual

has un

ered powers and there is

balanced autharity

The volue of Co-op Money NZ's ass

and interests are protected and

enhanced through the Op;.,:r oval of

appropriate
and pr

¢ investment 2o com ij'\rc” ion and

return expectations.

To achieve Boord and monagement

accountability, Co-op Money NZ uses

rence (policies), and a

formal del authority to the

Chief Executive. ',ay to-day leadership

dand management of C
d by the C

~-op Money NZ is

manage Utive
<4

Iri order for the Board to be effective
Co-op Money NZ,
tors believe that it needs to

and to add value
the Direc

facilitate the efficient disc

8l® e of the
narge or the
duties i posea by law.

tl

To dchieve this,

e Board is organised

in such a way that it:

- Obtdins a proper understanding of,
and competence tc deal with, the

current and eme es of

ng is

._<| g

the b

+ Can effectively review and challeng

ey

nanaaq

the performan

T

and exercise independent judgment

Board compaosition

The constitution (rules) g

overning Co-op
Money NZ allows for a maximum of seven
directors, one of whom may be appointed
by the Board as an Independent Director
for one or more fixed terms not exceeding
three years each

On 11 July 2017 the Co-op Maoney NZ
Board appoeinted Richard Westlake to
be an independent adviser for a period

of 12 months. Richard has subseguently
peen appointed Interdependent

Directoer

Committees of the Board

The Co-cp ! \orﬁey NZ Board hos
two committe he Audit and Risk

Committee and L)lr(_ or Nomination

Committee. In addition, the Board may
create ad hoc committees from time

to time.

Board process
Member credit unions elect a majority of
directors to heip bring spe

spectives to Bo

ial expertise

or pers deliberations

ird
Decisions of the Board are made as o

whole after taking each perspeclive into
made in the

of Co-op Money NZ.

account. The decisions are

best interes

Bef

receive comprenensive information

re each meeting, Directors

on Co-op Money NZ's operations and
have unrestricted access to any cther

infarmalion or records they reqguire.

The

ard can also utilise the help of

senior management to attend relevant

sections of Board meetings to address

gueries and to

the Board's

assist in (1E?V€"I‘7Q|Hi)

understanding of the

Issue

cing

o-op Money NZ and the



e of the business, which
might not have otherwise been known.

performanc

In addition to regular Board meetings on
annual strategic planning process occurs,

The Strategic Plan for 1 January
2018 to 31 December 2020 has been
approved by the Co-op Money NZ
Board and presented to Members.
Management reports regularly

te Members on progress toward
achievement of the plan.

To deal appropriately with conflicts
and/or interests Co-op Meney NZ has
written procedures in place to clarify
the standards of ethical behavicur
required of directors and management.
Co-op Meney NZ has an employee

handhook, which emhcdi-es its values

and supplements the cod

e of conduc
practices that are incorporated inte
all employees’ terms
An Ethics
whe

of employment

—ommittee con be formed

requested by the Board, ora

Member credit union, for the purposes

of reviewing any complaint received in

accordance with the Cade of Ethics

Directors are reguired to make an
to the Director
Code

standards of professional conduct

annual affirmation

Code of Conduct. This defines

which the B

oard expects of its Directo

While the integrity of Co

NZ's financial reperting is the sple

o-0p Mc;\rwey

responsibility of the Board, C,Q—op

Money NZ has in place a structure of

review and autherisation designed to

ensure truthful and factual presentation

of its financial positien
This includes:

- An Audit & Risk Committee that
appropriately resourced and
oper'oumg under g written charter

+ Review ond consideration by the
Audit & Risk Committee of the
accounts and apprepricte policies

« A process to oversee and ensure the
independence and competence of

Co-op Money NZ's external auditors

+ Responsibility for gppointment of the
external auditors resides with the
Audit & Risk Committee subject to
approval by the Board

+ Establishment of an independent
external party that conducts the
internal audit function with reporting

Risk

responsibility to the Audit &

Committee

The Audit & Ri
regular basis

sk Cormnmitiee meeten a
throughout the year and
report directly to the Board

Accountability for compliance with

disclosure 'C'JUTI'QO tions is with Co- op

Money NZ's Secretary. The Chief

Executive has been delegated the

position of Secretary by the Beard
The Chief Executive and Chief Financial
Office

from the Audit & Ri

er rmust seek prior approval

sk Committee and
the Board before making significant
announcements, which include the

interim half yearond final full year results

and dividend, the financial stotements
for those pericds, and any advite ena

change of earnings forecast.

Co-op Maoney NZ sesks to ensure that

its Memboers understand its activities by:

- Maintoining effective and regular

cormmmunications with them

Giving Members ready access [0
balanced and clear information
about Co-op Money NZ and any key

or:;ur‘hou’\m, ero OpPOsails

To allow Member credit unions to easily
and efficiently participate in general
rmeetn'nqs and forums. To assist with

this, Co-op Meney NZ has developed

an intranet. which is maintained with
relevant information including copies
of presentations, reports and media
or Member communigué releases, The
annucl report is available in electronic
format from Co-op Money NZ.

A formalised system by Co-op Money
NZ is in place for identifying, overseeing,
managing and controlling risk. The
Board is ultimately responsible for

the oversight of risk management

and setting Co-op Money NZ's risk
appetite and telerances. The Board is
assisted by the Audit & Risk Committee
in discharging its responsibilities

with regards to the oversight of

risk management. The processes
involved reguires the maintenance of

o governance level Risk Management
Framework and ¢ Risk Register that
identifies key D‘I)Eﬂr(ﬂioﬁd risks focing
the bu
initiatives err:pioyod te reduce them:. A
Risk Appetite Dashboard is maintained
which she

ows performance again

us ef various

Board approved risk tolerances
and highiights any deviaticon from
compliance with the risk tolerance
The Audit & Risk Cemmittee is
responsible for designing an internal
audit programme addressing the
adequocy of internal controls related
to Co-op Money NZ's credit, liquidity,
market, operational and insurance
risks
for oversee

The committee is alse responsible

ing the audit programme
esigned to test the agequacy

of internal controls related to the

Information Services delivered by Co-op

Money NZ including the security of the

FACTS ond Flexcube system

Directors and senior executives need
to be equipped with the appropriate
knowledge and information to
discharge their responsibilities
effectively and be assured that
ingividual and collective performance

s regularty and fairly reviewed.



Under the Board policy, Directors

dre provided with financial resources
for ongoing training and education
with a formal appreisal process that
includes the Chagirman. An education
and development allowance is granted
to directors on gppeintment for their
term. A Co-op Money NZ Director can
only use this resource for professional
development, education and training
that will be of direct benefit to their
role. As part of the annual review of its
governance processes, the Board is
alse responsible for annugally evaluating
the performance of the Chief Executive.

The criteria the evaluation is based

on includes the performance of the
business and the accomplishment of
key strategic objectives and other non-
guantitative objectives established at
the beginning of each financial year. In
addition to these annual performance
reviews, the significant policy issues,
annugl budget and capital expenditure
decisions of management are put
through a formal Board review process.

Remuneration philosophy

Co-op Money NZ employs a
remuneration strategy that cims

to attract, retain and maetivate high
calibre employees at all levels of the
organisation. This is cimed to drive
performance and continue sustained
growth of Member value.

A key philosophy underpinning this
strotegy is thot all employees should
be appropriately and compelitively
rewarded. Total remuneration for senior
executives comprises of a base salary
including the value of any benefits

and may include a short term variable
incentive. This may be in the form of an
annual performance related payment
that reguires achievement of a mix of
finoncial ond business targets.

Non-executive Directors’
remuneration

The fees paid to non-executive
Directors for services in their capacity as
Cirectors of Co-op Money NZ during the
yearended 30 June 2018 are as per
the table on page 57 Co-op Money NZ's

policy is to align directors’ remuneration
to the market measured against
organisations of similar total asset value
and similar annual revenues. Directors'
fees are normally reviewed annually
and any changes recommended to
Members biennially, unless a significant
market movement has occurred. The
lgst review was in 2015 and at that
AGM the pool of directers’ fees payable
in any one year was increased 1o
$272,000. A further sum of $26,000
per annum was confirmed at the 2016
AGM for a new Independent Director
for Co-op Insurance NZ, taking the total
poal to $298,000.

In acknowledgment of the varying
workloads of the Board’s Audit & Risk
Committee, an additional 25% of the
ordinary Director Fee Is set aside for the
Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee

Travel expenses

The Directors dre entitied to receive
reimbursements for their travel,
accommodation and out of pocket
expenses whilst attending Board
meetings. Co-op Money NZ also pays
the travel and costs for Directors and
accompanying portners to attend
Co-op Money NZ's Annual General
Meeting. conferences and forums.
When Directors travel overseas

to international meetings and
conferences, their travel, registration
and accommodation expenses are
paid. The costs of registration and
attending official functions are alsc paid
for a partner of official representotives
of Ce-op Money NZ attending such
international meetings.

Directors’ development allowance
Directors dre gllocated a $8.000
development allowance per term. This
allowance is to be used with prior Board
appreval. This allowance is used by
Directors to help them to gain/achieve
personal development relevant to the
Director's identified needs to enhance
their performance as a Co-op Meoney
NZ Group Director.

Directors’ insurance protection
Co-op Meney NZ maintains apprepriate
Personal Accident cover as well as
Directors’ Liability Insurance for its
Directors. The Directors” Liability
Insurance ensures that the Directors

will suffer no financial loss as a result
of actions taken by thermn as Directors,
provided that they operate with due
diligence and within the law. In the
event of a claim being made, the
Persona! Accident cover provides for
full proceeds being paid to the insured
director or their estate.

Chief Executive Officer’'s
remuneration

Executive managers do not receive any
further remuneration where they are
appointed as a director of Co-op Money
NZ or its subsidiaries.

Co-op Money NZ recognises that it has
a number of legal and other obligations
to non-member stakeholders such

as employees, requilatory authorities,
suppliers and the community as
awhele. Its commitment to these
obligations is captured in cur Code

of Ethics and various policies and
procedures for ethical conduct, the
responsibility to employees and
relationships with suppliers and
customers. These are incorporated into
the employment terms of all employees.

Holding securities or other interests
No Director or executive of Co-op
Money NZ holds any notes or any
personal beneficial interest in Co-op
Money NZ.

Compliance with corporate
governance best practice

Co-op Meney NZ seeks to meet the
principles of best practice for New
Zealand Directors gs promulgoted

by the Four Pillars of Effective Board
Governance as published by the
Institute of Directors in New Zealand Inc.
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Independent auditor’s report
To the members of New Zealand Association of Credit Union

The consolidated financial statements comprise:

e The consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018;

* the statement of comprehensive revenue and expense for the year then ended;
e the statement of changes in net assets/equity for the year then ended;

e the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

¢ the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies.

Our opinton

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of New Zealand Associated of Credit Union (the
Association) trading name as Co-op Money NZ, including its subsidiaries (the Group), present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2018, its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Public Benefit Entity Standards.

Basis for 7 MI1ON

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) (ISAs
NZ) and International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised)
Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners (PES 1) issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements.

Our firm carries out other services for the Group in the areas of tax compliance, assurance on internal
controls and solvency return for insurance business. The provision of these other services has not
impaired our independence as auditor of the Group.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report

The Directors are responsible for the annual report. Our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements does not cover the other information included in the annual report and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion on the other information.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 188 Quay Street, Private Bag 02162, Auckland 1142, New Zealand
T: +64 9 355 8000, F: +64 9 355 8001, pwe.conz




misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard, except that the other information has not yet been approved by the Board.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated financial statements

The Directors are responsible, on behalf of the Association, for the preparation and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements in accordance with Public Benefit Entity Standards, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements, as a whole, are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs NZ and ISAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the
External Reporting Board’s website at:

hitps www.xrb.govi.nz/standards-for-assurance-practitioners/auditors u-n;.::n-.ilwmli.‘-. ik it -1 port-7

This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Who we ?'(',l)rfl'f {o

This report is made solely to the Directors, as a body. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state those matters which we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Association and the Directors, as a body, for our audit work, for this report or
for the opinions we have formed.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Karl Deutschle.

For and on behalf of:

Chartered Accountants Auckland
25 September 2018




AND EXPENSE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Note 2018 2017
(RESTATED)
$000 $000
Interest Revenue 2 1090 2349
Interest Expense 3 855 1714
NET INTEREST REVENUE 235 635
Banking Services Revenue 12.026 15023
Other Revenue 4 1089 867
TOTAL REVENUE NET OF INTEREST EXPENSE 13,350 16,525
Employee Costs S 4678 4643
Transaction Costs 4897 6925
Operating Expenses 6 6,196 5,200
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 15,871 16,768
NET LOSS BEFORE IMPAIRMENT (2,521) (243)
Impairment Credit 8 9 139
NET PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (2,512) (104)
Taxation Expense 2 £ =
NET LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (2.512) (104)
NET PROFIT FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 7 121 107
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE REVENUE AND EXPENSE FOR THE YEAR (2.391) 3

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.




FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

TY (MEMBERS' FUNDS)

Accumulated

Note Bl Lapital Losses / Retained Total
hates Earnings
$000 $000 $S000
Opening Balance - 1 July 2016 (gs previously reported) 13,695 72 13,767
Correction of error = i 252
Balance at 1 July 2018 (Restated) 13,695 (180) 13,515
Base Capital Notes Dividends Paid 1 - (305) (305)
Total Comprehensive Revenue and Expense for the Year = 3 3
Balance at 30 June 2017 b | 13,695 (482) 13,213
Balance at 1 July 2017(Restated) 13695 (482) 13213
Base Capital Notes Dividends Paid = = =
Total Comprehensive Revenue and Expense for the Year - (2,381) (2,391)
Balance at 30 June 2018 11 13,695 (2.873) 10,822

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.




SOLIDATED STATEMENT

FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

Note 2018 2017 2016
(RESTATED) (RESTATED)
$000 $000 $000
NET ASSETS / EQUITY (MEMBERS' FUNDS)
Base Capital Notes 10 13895 13695 13885
Retained Earnings/(Accumulated Losses) 1 (2.873) (482) (180)
TOTAL EQUITY (MEMBERS' FUNDS) 10.822 13,213 13,515
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 12 = 16,597 20,481
Accounts Receivable 13 1,606 9,600 7,552
Expected Recoveries 33 = 158 92
Investments 14 15583 48,755 58.872
Prepayments 15 507 1783 1448
Inventory 18 83 74 123
Property, Plant and Equipment 17 571 812 866
Other Intangible Assets 18 8,595 7.079 4,180
Non-current Deposit 147 147 147
Assets classified as held for sale 7 10,194 = =
TOTAL ASSETS 37,286 82,985 93,761
LIABILITIES
Bank Overdraft 12 1152 - -
Deposits Received 18 14,502 56,120 68,654
Accounts Payable 20 1951 3.277 3656
Provisions 22 297 415 407
Outstanding Claims Liability 33 = 3380 2958
Unearned Premium Liability 33 = 6,580 4571
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale 7 8,562 = 2
TOTAL LIABILITIES 26,464 69,772 80.246
NET ASSETS 10,822 13,213 13,515
This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying nates.
N

by the Board of Directors on 25 September 2018 ond = i-'lv l ,{

o e Y, | =
These financial statements were authorised for issue l it 1A
were signed for on its behalf Chair Co-op Money NZ Chair Audit and Risk Committee




OLIDATED STATEMENT

IF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Note 2018 2017
$000 $000
Cash was provided from
Membership Contributions Received 587 608
Insurance Premiums Received 10,402 11,894
Premium Funding Income Received 514 467
Other Receipts from Customers 10,703 16,447
Loan Repayments from Customers =] 139
Investment Interest Received 3.582 23389
Motor Vehicle Claims Recoveries 6878 479
26,485 32,373
Cash was applied to
Payments to Suppliers and Employees 17.431 21,787
Insurance Claims, Acguisition Costs and Rebates Paid 8437 8,367
Interest Paid 719 1511
Credit Union Foundation Grants and Denaticns - 1
26,587 31,626
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 29 (102) 747
Cash was provided from
Sale of Fixed Assets and Intangibles 12 =
Proceeds from Sales and Maturities of Investment Securities 244,720 481,091
244,732 481,091
Cash was applied to
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 188 429
Purchase of Intangible Assets 2.703 3575
Purchase of Investment Securities 214,564 468,974
217.435 472,978
NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 27,297 813
Cash was provided from = =
Cash was applied to
Base Capital Note Dividend Paid = 305
Net decrease in Deposits 41,700 12,538
41,700 12,843
NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (41,700) (12,843)
Net (decrease)/increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (14.505) (3.884)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year 16,597 20.481
12.7 2,092 16,597
Cash flows of discontinued operations 7

This statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.




FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

1. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

entities as detailed in note 1(e).

Co-op Money NZ, the trading name
of New Zealand Association of
Credit Unions (the "Association”),

is an association of Credit Unions
registered under the Friendly

Scocieties and Credit Unions Act 18982.

It comprises two Trusts ("Divisions”):
a Member Services Division and

a Business Services Division. The
Divisions ore established pursuant
to the Rules of Association, which
were approved by ils members on
25 September 1994 and were first
registered with the Registrar of
Friendly Societies and Credit Unions
on 10 November 1884,

The Association’s wholly cwned
Controlled Entity, Credit Union

Insurance Limited trading as Co-op
Insurance NZ hiclds an Insurance
licence issued by the Reserve Bank
of New Zealand on 1 April 2013
under the Insurance (Prudential
Supervision) Acl 2010. Co-op
Insurance NZ is registered under the
Companies Act 18383 and is an FMC
reporting entity under Part 7 of the
Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013

e finoncial staterments have

been prepared in accordance with
New Zealund Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice ("NZ GAAP").
They comply with Public Benefit
Entity Standards ("PBE Standards”)
and autheritative notices that are
applicakle to entities that apply PBE
Standards as agppropriate for Tier 1
not-for-profit public benefit entities.

Co-op Money N7 is domiciled in New
Zealand and its principal activities
are Lo provide banking and olher
services for credil unions.

These financial statements have
been prepored on the basis of
historical cost, except for the
revaluation of certain financial
instruments. Cost is based on the fair
value of the consideration given in
exchange for the assets.

Accounting policies are selected
and opplied in a manner which
ensures that the resulting financial
information satisfies the concepls
of relevance and reliability, thereby
ensuring that the substance of the
underlying transactions or other
events are reported

ltems included in the financial
statements are meagsured using the
currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity
operates (the functicnal currency)
The financial statements are
presented in New Zealand Dellars,
which is the Economic Entity's
functional and presentation currency
All values have been rounded off to
the nearest 1,000 dollars ($) unless
otherwise stated

Foreign currency monetary assets
and liabilities hove been transloted
into the functional currency at the
rate of foreign exchange ruling as
at balance sheet date. Tronsactions
denominated in a foreign currency
are converied to New Zealand
dollars ot the exchange rates in
effect at the dote of the transoction.

Foreign exchange differences
relating to monetary items and
gains ond losses arising from
foreign exchange dealings by the
Econaemic Entity are recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive
Revenue and Expense.

The Econornic Entity’s insurance
and related assets are realised and
seltled over periods of several years,
reflecting the long-term nature of
the Econemic Entity’s products.
Accordingly. the Economic Entity
presenls the assets and liabilities in
its statement of financial position in
approximate order of liquidity, rather
than distinguishing current and
non-current assets and liabilities
The E
intangitle assets, and plant and

onomic Entity regards its

equipment ds non-current assets as
these are held for the longer-term
use of the Economic Entity.

In the application of PBE Standards
management is reguired to

make judgements, estimates and
gssumptions about the carrying
values of gssets and ligbilities that
are not readily cpparent from
cther sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various
other foctors that management
pelieve (o pe reascnable under

the circumstances, the results of



which form the basis of making the
judgrments. Actual results may differ

from these eslimates

The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on

an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate

is revised if the revision affects only
that period
revision and future per\ods if the

or in the period of the

revision affects both current and
future periods..

Significant judgements, estimates
and assumplions made by
mandagement in the preparation
of these financial staternents are
outlined below:

+ Allowance for Impairment Loss
Where Loans Receivable are
outstanding beyond the normal
contractual terms, or where
uncertainty exists over the
recoverability of loans receivable,
the lkelinood of the recovery
of these assels is assessed
by managerment. The specific

s estimated

with reference to the probability

v impairrment los

of recovery, the cost of possible
enforcement through security
and related costs and sale
proceeds. Any collective provision
is estimated using historical and
industry trends.

.

Estimation of Fair Value

of Financial Instruments

The determination of fair values
of financigl instruments is based
on quoted market prices or dealer
price quetations for financial
instruments traded in active
markets, or by using valuation
technigues. Valuation techniques
include discounted cash flow
analysis and comparison to similar
financial instruments for which
market cbservable price exists

To the extent posswb\e. models use
only cbservable data. Inputs to
valugtion models such as credit risk,
volatilities and correlations require
manogement lo make judgements
and estimates. Changes in the

assumptions used in these models

and projections of future cash flows
could affect the reported fair value
of fingncial instrumenis,

Estimation of Insurance
Contract Liabilities

Insurance conrtract liabilities

are computed using slatistical

or mathematical methods. The
computations are made by suitably
qualified personnel on the basis of
recegnised actuarial methods, with
due regard to relevant actudrial
principles

Theim
the risks and uncertainties of the

thodelogy takes into uccount

particular classes of insurance
business written.

The key factors that affect the
estimation of these liabilities and
related assets are:

= discontinuance experience, which
affects the Economic Entity's
ability to recover the cost of
acguiring new business over the
lives of the contracts

+ the cost of providing benefits and
administering these insurance
contracts

+ the discount rate applied to
calculate the present value of
future benefits.

n addition, factors such as
regulotion, inflation, interest rates,
taxes, investment market conditions
OF‘I.._A QE'W‘-*FJ 8¢ OHCWIL (OFIHI l\“ﬂr
Jffect the level of these liabilities

Other judgements made by
management in the application of
PBE Standards that have significant
effect on the financial statements
and estimates with a Cugmﬂf(m\ risk
of material adjustments in the ne
year are disclosed, where applicable,
in the relevant notes to the financial
statements.

The particular accounting policies
used in the preparation of the
financial statements are as follows

(a) Revenue and Expense

Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent
that it is probable that economic
benefits will flow to the Economic
Entity and that revenue can be
reliably measured. The principal

sources of revenue are interest
revenue, insurance premiums,
transaction and other fees.

Interest Revenue and Expense
For all financial instruments
measured at amortised cost,
interest revenue or expense

is recorded at the effective
interest rate, which is the rate

hal exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the
instrumerit or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial
asset or financial iabitity. The
application of the method has the
effect of recognising revenue and
expense evenly in proportion to
the amount outstanding over the
expected life of the financial asset
or liability

The calculation takes into account
all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example,
prepayment cptions) and
includes any fees or incremental
osts that are directly
atiributable to the instrument
and are an integral part of the
effective interest rate, but not
future credit losses. The adjusted
carrying amount is calculated
based on the original effective
inter
carrying amount is recorded as

t rate end the change in

interest revenue or expense.

Other than for non-accrudl
items, once the recorded value
of the financial osset or group of

similar financial assets has been
reduced due to an impairment
loss, interest revenue continues to
be recognised using the original
effective interest rote applied to
the new carrying amount

The Economic Entity recognises

nterest revenue and lending

on an accrual basis when the



services are rendered using the
effective interest rate method.

Lending Fees

The calculation of the life of
Loan Receivables is based on
contractual data. The actual life
of Loan Receivables is used to
apportion loan crigination and
associated direct costson a
straight line basis,

Banking Services Transaction
and Other Fees

Commissions or fees which
relate to specific transactions or
events are recognised in surplus
or deficit on the Statement of
Comprehensive Revenue and
Expense when the service is
provided to the Memiber or
cuslomer. When commissions
and fees are charged for services
provided over a period, they are
token lo income on an gecruals
basis as the service is provided

Insurance Premiums

Premium revenue is recognised
from the attochment date s
soon as there is a basis on which
it can reliably be estimated
Premiurm revenue is recognised
in surplus or deficit on the
Statement of Comprehensive
Revenue and Expense over

the period of the contract in
accordance with the pattern

of incidence of risk expected
under the insurance contract.
Premium revenue excludes fire
service and eorthguake levies
collected on behalf of statutory
bodies. The unearned portion

of prémium is recognised as an
unearried premium liability on the
Statement of Financial Position.

Reinsurance Expense

Premium ceded to reinsurers is
recognised as an expense that is
evenly spread from the date of
attachment of the risk lo theend

of the period of the reinsurance
contract over the pericd of indermnity
of the relnsurance contract.

Expense Recognition
All expenses are recognised
in surplus or deficit on the

Statement of Comprehensive
Revenue and Expense on an
accruals basis.

Foreign Currency Transactions
When o geod or service is
purchased in a foreign currency
the cost is recoghised at the
rate of exchange at which

the commitment is settled. All
outstanding invoices at year end
are valued ot the ruling rate of
exchange or at the rate of any
foreign exchange contract heid
for settlement of that liability.

(b) Valuation of Assets
and Liabilities

Financial Instruments

Financial Instruments are
transacted on a commercial basis
to derive an interest yield / cost
with the terms and canditions
having due regard fo the noture
of the transcction and the risks

invoived

Financial Assets

Financial Assels are classified in
ene of the following categories at
initial recognition:

+ Loans and receivables

» Fair value through surplus or
deficit

« Held to maturity

+ Available-for-sale.

Certoin categeries of lhese

require measurement at fair

value. Where quoted market

prices do not exist, fair values

are estimated using discounted

cash flow models, using methods

ond assumpticns that are based

on market cenditions and risks

existing at balance date. Financial

instruments are recognised and

accounted for on o settlement

date basis.

(i) Loans and Receivables
Assets in this category are
measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest
rmethod. Financial assets
clossified as loans and
receivaples include:

+ Cash ond Cash Equivalents

« Accounts Receivable

» Loans Receivable
= Investments,

Loans Receivable cover all
forms of lending to customers,
and include residential lending,
commercial lending and vendor
finance. They are recognised

in the Statement of Financial
Position when cash is advanced
to the customer.

Loans Receivable dre reported
net of provisians for impairment
to reflect the estirmated
recoverable armounts.

(ii} Fair Value through Surplus
or Deficit

Financial assets backing
insurance ligbilities are measured
at fair value with movements
recognised in surplus or deficit on
the Statement of Comprehensive
Revenue and Expense. Interest

is recognised on an amortised
cost basis in surplus or deficit on
the Statement of Comprehensive
Revenue and Expense, Fair value
movements have been calculated
taking this inte account.

(iii) Held to Maturity
Investments

Financial Assets in this category
dre measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest
method. There are currently no
financial assets in this category.

(iv) Available-For-Sale
Available-for-sale financial
assets are measured at fair
vaiue, The fair value of the gssets
is based on queled market prices
and Tair value movernents are
recognised directly in eguity.
Interest is recognised on an
cmortised cost basis in surplus
or deficit on the Statement of
Comprehensive Revenue and
Expense:

There are currently no financial
assets in this category:.

Financial Liabilities

Debt and eqguity instrurments are
clossified as either liabilities or
Memkbers' Funds in accordance
with the substance of the




contractual arrangement

Ligbilit
initially at fair value, net of

25 dre recorded

transoction costs. Subsequent

to initial recognition. lidbilities

are medsured at amaortised ¢

with any difference between
the initial recognised amount
and the redemption value

recognised in surplus or
the Statement of Comprehensive
Revenue and Expense over the
period of borrowing using the
effective interest rate method.
Interest expense is recognised
in surplus or deficit on the
Statement of Comprehensive
Revenue and Expense using the
effective interest method

Deposits Received

Deposits received cover all
forms of deposits and include
transactional and savings

accounits, and term deposits

(i) Offsetting Financial
Instruments

The Economic Entity offsets
financial assets and financial
liabilities and reports
palance in the Statement of

> Net

Financial Position where there is
a legally enforceable right to sel-
off and there is an intention to
settle an a net basis or to realise
the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously

(ii) Derivative Financial
Instruments

Derivative financial instruments
are contracts whose vaiue is
derived from changes in one

or more underlying fingncial
instruments or indices. The
Economic Entity does not
engage in trading derivatives for
speculative purposes

- Interest Rate Swaps: The
Economic Entity entersinte -
interest rale swaps Lo assist
Member credit unions with
interest rate risk management.
The net fair value of interest
rate swaps receivable from
counterparties is disclosed as
Derivative Financial Assets,
The net fair value of interest
rate swaps payabie to

(c)

counterparties is disclosed as

Derivalive Finencial Liobilities.
Interest rate swaps are initially
recagnised at fair value on
lhe date on which ¢ derivative
contract isentered into and are
subsequently re-measured to
their fair value ot each reporting
date. The movement in the fair
value of interest rate swaps is
recognised in surplus or deficit on
the Statement of Comprehensive
Revenue and Expense
immediately

The Economic Entity does not
undertake any form of hedge
account ”\5

Asset Quality

Impairment of Financial Assets
Financial assets measured at
amorlised cost are reviewed Gt
each balance date to determine

whether there is any objective
evidence of impairment, IFany

such indication exists, the gsset’

s
recoverable amount is estimated

and provision is made for the
difference between the carrying
armount and the recoverable
amotnt.

(i) Loans Receivable

Specific provisions are made

for loans receivable which are
considered doubtful and are
presented net of the specific
provisions. Specific allowances
are made against the carrying
amount of loans receivable that
are identified as being impaired
based on reqular reviews of
oulstanding balances, Lo reduce
these loans receivable to their

Fé

overable amounts.

Collective allowances are
maintained to reduce the
carrying armount of portfolios

of similar loons receivable to
their estimated recoverable
amounts at balance date. These
allowances relate to incurred

sses not yet spe
identified in the portfolio. The

expected future cash flows for

the portfolios of similar assets

re estirnoled bosed on previous

experience aond considering the
credit rating of the underlying
customers and late payments of
interest and penalties

Increagses in the specific an

collective allowances are
recognised in the surplus or
deficit on the Statement of
Comprehensive Revenue and
Expense. When a loan is known to
be uncollectible, all the necessary
legal procedures have been
completed, and the final loss

nas been determined, the loan

s writlen off directly to surplus

or deficit on the Statement of
Comprehensive Revenue and
Expense

(ii) Impaired Loans Receivable
Impaired Loans Receivable
consist of non-accrual items,
past due assets, assets acquired
through enforcement of security

and restructured items:

« Non-ac al items, which are
defined as itemis in respect o
which revenue may no \urlger
pe occrued ahead of its receipt
because recsonable doubt
exists as to the collectability
of principal and interest. They
include exposures where
contractual payments are 80
or more consecutive days in
drrears and where security is
insufficient to ensure payment,

+ Past-due assels, which are
assels where the counterparty
has failed to make a payment
when contractually due.

- 90 day past-due assets,
which cre any assets thot
have not been operateda by
the counterparty within its key
terms for at least 80 days and
which are not restructured
assets, other impaired assets,
or financial assets acguired
through enforcement of
security

+ Fingncial assets acguired
through enforce ma:m of security,
which are assets acquired
through the enforcement of
security or where the Economic
Entity has assumed ownership
of an asset in settlement of all
or part ofa debt.

- Restructured items, which
are defined gs items in which
the criginal contractual terms
have been formally modified




to provide for concessions

of interest or princigal for
reasons related to the financiol
difficulties of the member, the
revised terms of the facility
are not comparable with the
terms of new facilities with
comparable risks and the
yield on the asset following
restructure is equal to or
greater than the Economic
Entity's average cost of funds
or a loss is not otherwise
expected to be incurred.

(iii) Impairment of Assets at

amortised cost

+ An assessment is made at
each bolance date whether
there is objective evidence that
a financial asset er group of
financial assets is impaired.
A finaricial asset or greug of
financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred
if, and only if. there is chjective
evidence of impairment as a
result cf one or more events
that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss
evenl’) and thol loss event (or
events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows
of the financial csset or group
of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Objective
evidence that a financial asset
or group of assets is impaired
includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the
directors abeout the following
loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of
the issuer or obligor

- a breach of contract, such as
a default or delinguency in
interest or principal payments

¢+ @ concession granted to the
borrower that the lender
would not ctherwise consider
for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower's
findncial difficulty

. it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter Registered
Bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation

+ the discppearance of an active
market for that financial agsset
because of financial difficuities;

or

- observoble dota indicating
that there is o measurable
decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a group
of financial assets since the
initial recognition of those
assets, aithough the decredse

cannot yet be identified with
the individual financial assets
in the group; including adverse
changes in the payment status
of borrowers in the group.
Firstly an assessment is made
whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are
individually significant, and
individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not
individually significant. If itis
determined thatl no objective
evidence exists for an individually
dssessed financial asset, whether
significant or not. the assets are
included in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively
assessed for impairment. Assets
that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an

impairment loss is or continues to

be recognised are not included
in a collective assessment of
impairment.

Ifthere is objective evidence that
an impairment loss on loans and
receivables or held-to-maturily
investments carried at amortised
red, the
amount of loss is measured

cost has been inc

as the difference between the
assel's carrying amount ond

the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluaing
future credit losses thaot have not
been incurred) discounted at the
financial assel’s original effective
interest rate, The carrying
armount of the assel is reduced
through the use of an allowance
account gnd the amount of

the loss is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive
Revenue aond Expense If a foan
or held-to-maturity investment
has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a proctical
expedient, impairment may be
measured on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.

The calculation of the present
value of the estimated future
cash flows of o colloteralised
financial asset reflects the

cash flows that may result

from foreclosure less costs for
obtaining and selling cellateral,
whether or not foreclosure is
propable. For the purposes

of a collective evaluation of
impairment. financial ossets are
grouped on the basis of similar
credit risk characteristics (i.e. on
the basis of the Economic Entity's
grading process that considers
collateral type. past-due status
and other relevant factors). Those
characteristics are relevant to the
estimation of future cash flows for
groups of such assets by being
indicative of the debtors’ ability

te pay all amounts due occording
to the contractual terms of the
assets being evaluated.

Fulure cash Tlows in a group

of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for
impairment are estimated on
the basis of the contractual cash
flows of the gssets and historical
loss experience for assels with
simitar credit characteristics,

timales of changes in future
eash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directicnally
consistent with changes in related
observable dato from period to
period (for example. changes

in payment status or other
factors indicolive of changes

in probability of losses in the
group and their magnitude). The
methodology and assumplions
used forestimeting future cash
flows are reviewed reguiarly to
reduce any differences between
loss estimates and actual loss
experience,

When a loan is uncoliectible, it

is written off to the Statement

of Comprehensive Revenue

and Expense. Such loans are
written off after all the necessary
procedures have been completed
and the amount of the loss has
been determined.




If, in @ subsequent period, the
amount of the impairment loss

decregses and the ¢
oe related abjectively to.an event
ococurmr Ig L]ﬂ_ef Lh@ impairment
ws recognised (such as an

imprevement in the debtors credit

rating), the previcusly recognised
impairment loss is reversed by
adjusting the allowance account.
The amount of the reversal is
recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Revenue and
Expense:

(iv) iImpairment of Assets
measured at fair value

The Economic Entity assesses
ateach balance date whether
there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of

financial assets is impaired
Any impairment of financial
assets measured at fair value

through surplus or deficit will be

included as part of the fair value

maoverment for those cssels,

reflected o‘ireczly in surplus
or deficit on the Staterment of
\,orr'lpre,—:hemsive Revenue and

Expense.

(d) De-recognition
of financial assets
A finoncial assel is de-recognised
when:

- The Economic Entity has
Tmh:r-zrred its ’ights to receive
cash flows from the gsset and
either

- has transferred substantialiy
all the risks and rewards of
the assel.

= has neither transferred nor
retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

« The rights to receive cash flows
from the assel have expired.

- The Econemic Entity retains the
right to receive cash flow from
the asset, but has assumed
an cbligation te pay them in
full witheut material delay to
a third por ly under ¢ "pass
throug arrangement.

When the Economic Entity has
transferred its right to receive
cash flows ﬁ om an asset and

has neither transferred nor

eldined substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset,

cognised Lo the
Entity's
tinuing invelvernent in the

the assel Is re

exlent © omic

asset.

(e) Consolidation
The Economic Entity’s financial
statements consclidate the
Association and the following

- Co-op Insurance NZ (wholly
owned centrolled enlity)—an
insurance company;

Co-op Services NZ (wholly
uwned coentrolled entity)—a
CoOmpany “rovir‘lmg services to
non-membpers of the parent
entity;

- CU Group Trustthe investment
holding trust of the parent
entity.

(i) Controlled Entities
Controlled Entities are all

enlities (including sp
purpcse entities) over which

the Association has the power,

o variaole
returns from its involvement with

exposure or rights |

the invesiee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its

power

Where Controlled Entities have
been acguired or sold during

the year, their cperating results
have been included from the
date control is pc:ssed to the
Association, or to the dale control
ceases

Acquisition-related cosls are
expensed as incurred

hanges in o Centrolling Entity's

ewnership interest in a Controlled
Entity that do not result in the

Controlling Entity losing control
of the Controlled Entity are
recorded through eguity to
reflect o transaction amongst

shareholders.

The acquisition of any Controlled

Entity is accounted for using the

acguisition method of gcecounting.
The acquisition method of

cccounting involves recognising

at acquisition date, separately
from goodwill, the identifiable
assets, the liabilities assumed
and any nen-controlling interest
in the acquiree. The identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities

assumed are measured at their
acquisition date fair values.

On consolidation, all significant
inter-company transactions,
balances and unrealised gains
on transactions have been
eliminated, Unreclised losses

are also eliminated unless the

transaction provides evidence

of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies
of Controlled Entities have been
changed where necessory to
ensure consistency with the
pelicies adopted by the Economic
Ertity.

(ii) Joint Ventures

Jeint Ventures dgre those

entities over whose activities the
Econornic Entity has joint control,

established by contractual

agreement and 'uquulmg
unanimaus consent for strategic
findricial and operating decisions,

Jointly controlled entilies are
duccounted for by the Economic
Entity using the equity method
(equity accounted investees) and
are recegnised inftially ot cost. The
censolidated financial statements
include the Economic Entity’s
share of the income and expenses
and eguity movements of equity

accounted investees, from the
cate that significont influence or

until the

joint control commences
date that significant influence or
joint control cecses. Dividends
received from jointly controlled
entities are recorded in surplus
or deficit on the Statement of
Comprehensive Revenue and
Expense.

Profits and losses resulting from
upstream and downstream
transactions between the
Ecenormic Entity and its Joint
Venture are recognised in the
Economic Entity's financial
slatements only to the extent of



unrelated investor's interests in
the Joint Venture:

(f) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Eguivalents
comprise cash on hand and call
deposits.

{g) Accounts Receivables
Accounts Receivables are initially
recognised at fairvalue, and
are subseguernitly measured at
amortised cost using the effective
interest method,

Appropriate allowance is
estimated for irrecoverable
drnounts which are recegnised
in surplus or deficit on the
Statement of Comprehensive
Revenue and Expense when
there is cbjeclive evidence thal
the assel is impaired.

(h) Deferred Commission Costs
Acquisitien costs incurred in
obtaining insurance controcts
are deferred and recognised
as assets where they can be
reliobly meagsured and where
it is probable that they will give
rise Lo premium revenue that
will be recognised in sulbbsequent
reporting periods. Deferred
acquisition costs are omortised
systematically in accoraance
with the expected pattern of
the incidence of risk under the
insurance contracts Lo which
they relate. This pattern of
amortisation corresponds
to the earning pattern of
the corresponding premium
revenue.

(i) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the
lower of cost, determined on @
first in, first cut basis, and net
redlisable value. Net realisable
value represents the estimated
selling price less oll estimated
costs to be incurred in marketing.
selling and distribution.

(j) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment is
carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impdirment
losses.

All Property, Plant and Equipment
is depreciated on a straight line
basis at rates which will write off
their cost less estimated residual
value over thelr expected useful
lives. Depreciation rates are as
follows:

Computer Equipment
20% - 40%

Office Furniture & Equipment,
Leasehold Improvement Costs
and Motor Vehicles

10% - 368%

The gain or loss arising on the
dispesal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference
between the sale proceeds

and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in the
Statement of
Revenue gnd Expense.

_omprehensive

The asset’s residual values, useful
lives and depreciation methods
are reviewed and adjusted it
appropriate at eoch balance

date

(k) Intangible Assets

U]

Intangible Assets comprise
Computer Software.

Computer Software is capitalised
on the basis of costs incurred

to geguire and bring to use

ic software. These

the spec
costs are amarlised over thelr

expected lives on a straignt line
basis of between 20% ond 40%

amertisation.

Impairment of Property Plant
and Equipment and Intangible
Assets

Property, plant and eqguipment
and intangible assets
subsequently measured at cost
that hove a finite useful life

are reviewed for impairment
whenever evenls or changes in
circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised
for the arnount by which the
assel's carrying amount exceeds

its recoverable amount. The
recoverabie amount is the higher
of an asset's fair value less costs
to sell and volue in use

If an asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount,
the asset is regarded as impaired
and the carrying amount is
written-down to the recoverable
armount. The total impairment
loss is recognised in the surplus
or deficit. The reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised in
the surplus or deficit.

(i) Value in use for non-cash-
generating assets
Non-cash-generating dssets are
those assets that are not held
with the primary cbjective of
generating a commercial return

For non-cash-generating assets,
value in use is determined using
an approach based on either a
depreciated replacement cosl
approach, restoration approach,
or a service units approach. The
f
to measure value in use depends

roach used

most appropriate ¢

cn the nature of the impairment
and availebility of information.

(ii) Value in use for cash
generating assets

Cosh genergting assets are those
assels that are held with the
primary cbjective of generating a
commercial return.

The value in use for cash-
generoting assets and cash-
gererating units is the present
volue of expecled fulure cash
flows

(m) Taxation

The Association has not provided
for income tax on the basis it is
exempt for tax under Section
CW44 (o) of the Income Tax Act
2007. However other controlled
entities are subject to taxation.

income tax on the net profit for
the period comprises current

and deferred tax, Income tox is
recognised in surplus or deficit
except to the extent thatl it relates

to items recognised in ather




Comprehensive Revenue and
Expense or diréctly in equity, in
which case it is recognised in

other Comprehensive Revenue

and Expense or directly in eguity

(i) Current Tax
Current tax is calculated by
reference to the amount of
income taxes payable or
recovergble in respect of the
taxable profit or tax loss for the
period. Itis calculated using tax
rates and tox laws that have
peen enacted or substantively
enacted by reporting date
Current tax for current and prior
periods is recognised as a liability
(or asset) to the extent that it is
unpaid (or refundable). Tax assets
and ligkilities are offs

t only when
the Econornic Entity has  legally
enforceable right to set off the

sed amounts, and intends

F(:'*COBT 1
to settle on a net basis.

(ii) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is accounted for
using the liability methoed in
respect of temporary differences
arising from differences

between the carrying amount

of assets and lighilities in the
finoncial statements and the
corresponding tax base of those
items

In principle, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred
lox assels are recognised to
the extent that it is probable
that sufficient toxoble amounts
will be ovailable against which
deductible temporary differences
or unused tax losses and tax
offsets can be utilised.

However, deferred tax assets
and ligbilities are not recognised
it the temporary differences
giving rise to them arise from the
initial recogniticn of assets and
liabilities (other than as a result
of a business combination) which

affects neither taxable income

nor accounting profit,
Deferrad tax liabilities are
nol recognised for taxable

S

temporary differences arising on
investrnents in Controlled Entities
and assccigles excepl where the
Economic Entity is abie to control
the reversal of the temporary

differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assets arising

from deduclible temporary
differences associated with these
investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the
termporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax gssets and ligkilitie
are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to
the peried(s) when the assel and
liability giving rise to them are
redlised or settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively
enacted by reporting cate. The
measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which
the Economic Entity expects, at
the reporting date. to recover ar
settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

(iii) Goods and Services Tax
(GST)

Revenue, expenses and assels
are recognised net of the amount
of GST except:

+ When the GST incurred en a
purchase fnnoas and services
is not r‘ecsvarob\e from Inland
Revenue in which case the GST

is recognised as part of the cost

of the acquisition of the assets
or as part of the expense item
as applicable.

« Accounts Receivaobles and

Accounts Payable, which are
stated with the \..I"?'\OLJ!";!.. of GST
cluded.

The net omount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to,
the taxation autherity Is included
as part of accounts receivable

(n)

or accounts payable in the
Statement of Financial Position

Cash flows, with the exception of
deposit cash flows, are included
in the Stotement of Cash Flows
The GST
component of cash flows arising

on a grass basis

from investing and financing
activities which is recoverable
from. or payable to, the taxation
autherity is included as an

o

operating activity

Insurance Liabilities
The policy liabilities of Co-op
Insurance NZ, o Controlled

Entity, have been determined
in accordance with Professional
Standards No. 20 & 30 of the New
Zealand Society of Actuaries.

Premium that has not been
recognised in surplus or deficit on
the Staternent of Comprehensive
Revenue and Expense:is
unearned premium and is

recognised in

Financial Position
premium \iublhty.

The adeguacy of the unearned
prermium liability is assessed by
considering current estimates of
the present value of the expected
future cosh flows and o margin
for risk lelotmg to future cldims
arising from motor vehicle
insurance contracts. In the event
of a deficit the entire deficit is
recognised in surplus or deficit on
the Statement of \,o.“ﬂpre’* ensive
Revenue and Expense.

Life Insurance Liabilities are
recorded as the undiscounted
accumulated benefits to
policyholders except where the
outcome is materially different
from the net present value of
future payments to pelicyholders

Motor Venicle claims liability
i5 measured as the central
estimate of the present value of

the expected future payment for
claims incurred with an additional
risk margin to allow for the inherent

uncertainty in the central estirmate



Life Insurance claims liability and
Motor Vehicle Insurance claims
liabiiity are not discounted due
to the short term nature of these
claims. Open disability claims
are discounted at en assessed
risk free rate as the liability may
extend for the duration of the
underlying loan.

(o) Provisions
Provisions cre recognised
when the Economic Enlity has
a present ohligation, the future
sacrifice of benefits is probabile,
and the amount of the provision
can be measured relicbly.

Provisions are meadsured gt the
present value of management's
best estirmate of the expenditure
reguired to settle the present

obligation at'the balance date.
If the effect of the tirme value of
money is material, provisions
are discounted using @ pre-tox

rote thal reflec e time value

of money and the ris

to the liability! The inci

> provisions resulting from the

passage of time is
a finance cost.

recognised as

When sorme or gll of the econamic

benefils reguired 1o settle a
provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party. the
receivable is recognised asan
asset if it is virtually certain that
recovery will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be
measured relicbly.

(p) Leases

Leases are classified as finance
leases wheriever the terms of the
lease Lransfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership

to the lessee. All other ledses are

clossified as operating ledses.

Operating lease rentals/expenses
are recognised as an expense

on a straight line basis over

the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is mdre
representative of the time pattern
in which economic benefits from
the leased assets are derived

Assets held under finance leases
are initially recognised os assets
of the Economic Entity at their fair
value at the inception of the lease
or, if lower, at the present valug
of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to

the lessor is included in the
Statement of Financial Position
as a finance lease obligation.

Leose payments are apportioned
pbetween finance charges and the
reduction of the lease obligation
50 0s (o ochieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining
liakility. Finonce charges

are charged directly agains
income. Finonce legse assels

are amortised on a straight line
basis over the estimated useful
life of the assetl or the lease term
whichever is shorte

Present ebligations arising under

onercus leases dre recognised

provisions. An

and measured ds |
onerous lease is considered to
exist where the Econcmic Entity
nas @ contract underwhich the
unaveidable costs of meeting the
oiligations under the ::onlrgcl
exceed the economic benefits
expected o be received under it.

(q) Employee Entitlements
Provision is made for entitiements
aceruing to employees in respect
of salaries and wages. annual

leave, long service leave and

sick leave when it is probable
thot settlement will be required
and theyare copable of being

measured reliably.

Provisions made in respect of
employee entitleme
to be settled within 12 menths,
are measured al their nominal
values using the remuneraticn
rate expected to opply at the time

of seltlement.

Provisions made in respect of
employee entitlerments which are
not expected to be settled within
12 months are measured as the
present value of the estimated
future cash outflows to be

made by the Ecenomic Entity in

respect of services provided by
employees up tc reporting date.

(r) Other Liabilities

(s)

)

Other liabilities are recognised
when the Economic Entity
becomes obliged to make future
payments resulting from the
purchase of gocds and services

Other liahilities are meagsured ot
amartised cost. The amounts are
unsecured,

Statement of Cash Flows
The Statement of Cash Flows is
prepared exclusive of GST.

The following are definitions of
the terms used in the Statement
of Cash Flows:

- Cash and Cash Eguivalents are
considered to be cash an hand
and call deposits.

- Investing activities are those
relating to the acquisition,
holding and disposal of
property. plant and equipment
and investments. Investments
can include movements in
related party balances and
securities not falling within the
cdefinition of cash and cash
equivalents.

- Fingncing activities are those
activities which result in
changes in the size, composition
and the capital structure of the
Economic Entity. This includes
both eguity and debt not falling
within the definition of cash and
cash equivalents.

- Operating activities include
all transactions and other
events that are not investing or
financing activities,

Segment Reporting

The Economic

reporting format is busmess

. The Economic Entity

operates solely within New

Zealand and does not recognise

Entity's primary

segments

separate geogrophical segments

The Economic Entity elects

to present an analysis af the
operating segments on the basis
of internal reports about the
components of the Economic
Entity.




{u) Accounting Standards Adopted
during the Year
No new Accol

{v) New Accounting Standards and
Interpretations issued not yet
effective and have not been
early adopted by the Economic
Entity
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

3 0] 2018 2017
= 5000 $000
ot 2 INTEREST REVENUE
Bank, Money Market Securities, Local Authority and Floating Rate Note Interest 912 2,010
Other Interest 178 339
TOTAL INTEREST REVENUE 1.080 2,349
3 INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on Deposits 855 1712
Other Interest = 2
TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE 855 1714
| NET INTEREST REVENUE 235 B35
j 4 OTHER REVENUE
= Membership Contributions 592 533
Other Revenue 497 274
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 1089 867
S5 EMPLOYEE COSTS
Salaries and Wages 4672 4,831
Other Staff Costs 6 i2
TOTAL EMPLOYEE COSTS 4,678 4643
6 OPERATING EXPENSES
Auditors’ Remuneration:
- Audit fees to PricewaterhouseCoopers 57 Be
- Other fees to PricewaterhouseCoopers & -
Information Systern Review 75 26
Total Auditors' Remuneration 132 78
Depreciation:
- Furniture, Fittings, Office Equipment & Vehicles 84 65
- Computer Equipment 328 321
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 726 532
Directors' Fees 283 250
Directors' and Governance Expenses 56 S
Leasing Charges 301 =7
Loss/(Gain) on Disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment @ 2
OCther Operating Expenses 4,310 3588

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 6.196 5,200




7 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Description

On 31 August 2017 Co-op Insurance NZ Boc

ard acceplted an offer for the sale of the Co

op Insurance NZ insurance bt

tion Lirnited

rovident Insurance Corporc i, a fellow insurance cormpany with whom Co-op Ir e NZ has had a strategic

alliance for over three years

o-0p Insurance NZ insurance blisineg
10

transaction the Life Busines

The sale of the s to Provident Insurance Corporation Limited was agreed on 15
g le of th to Provid | rance Corpc ion Limited wa r jonl

ther Non Life

December 2017 and is rations for Motor Vehicle and

orted in the current period as dis

£

As part of

d to Pinnacle Life Limited and is ¢lsc a ¢

has been tran

Business

-cntinued

operation. The current year's reperted underwriting and statement of comprehensive income, statement ef financial po

s in eguity relates to the

linued operations. Co-op Insurance NZ has

2018 in accordance with the sale and purchase agreement.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND CASH FLOW INFORMATION

2018 2017
$000 $000
Net Interest Revenue 136 148
Insurance Premium Revenue 8,787 11.704
Other Revenue 609 2
TOTAL REVENUE NET OF INTEREST EXPENSE 10,532 11,853
Employee Cost 1,018 909
Insurance Claims & Comimissions 8460 9.888
Operating Expenses
- Audit fees to PricewaterhouseCoopers 47 45
- Other fees to PricewaterhouseCoopers = =
Taxation Compliance 1 15
Other Statutory Returns 5] B
Depreciation:
- Furniture. Fittings, Office Equipment & Vehicles 1 e
- Cormputer Equipment 1 2
Arnortisation of Intangible Assets e 144
Directors' Fees ~ 24
Other Operating Expenses 695 712
Total Expenditure 10,411 11,746
NET PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 121 107
Reinsurance Premiums . =
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE REVENUE AND EXPENSE FOR THE YEAR 121 107
2018
$000
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities (1,029}
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities 4121
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities =
Net increase in Cash 3,092
Internal funding adjustment (288)
Cash at the beginning of the period 440
CASH AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 3244




ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

2018
$000
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
Cash and Cash Equivalent 3,244
Accounts Receivables B.159
Expected Recoveries 216
Investments =
Prepayments 303
Property, Plant and Equipment 7z
Other Intangible Assets 265
Total Assets Classified as held for Sale 10,194
LIABILITIES DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
Outstanding Claims Liability 2,240
Unearned Premium Liability 4,581
Accounts Payable 261
Income Received in advance 1,465
Provisions 5
Total Liabilities Directly associated with assets classified as held for sale 8,562
UNDERWRITING RESULTS
Included in the incorme and expenditure for the Group are the following underwriting results:
2018 2017
$000 $000
LIFE INSURANCE
Gross Earned Premium 1.445 2353
Reinsurance Premiurns = =
Net Earned Premium prior to Rebates 1445 2,353
Gross Claims 770 1022
Reinsurance Received - =
Net Claims 770 1022
Commission 183 268
Underwriting Result 482 1,063
Credit Union Rebates = 190
Underwriting Income Transferred to Provident 185 =
327 873
OTHER NON-LIFE INSURANCE
Gross Earned Premium 2474 4,107
Reinsurance Premiums = i
Net Earned Premium prior to Rebates 2474 4107
Gross Claims 3286 1456
Reinsurance Received - =
Net Claims 326 1,456
Commission 598 906
Underwriting Result 1,550 1746
Credit Union Rebates - 214
Underwriting Income Transferred to Provident SE7 =
1,023 1532




2018 2017
$000 $000

MOTOR VEHICLE INSURANCE
Gross Earned Premium B.005 5461
Premium Funding Income 514 467
Reinsurance Premiums (338) (350)
Net Earned Premium prior to Rebates 6,181 5578
Gross Claims 5,095 5,028
Reinsurance Received = =
Net Claims 5,095 5,029
Commission & Acquisition Costs 1478 1208
Underwriting Result (392) (659)
Credit Union Rebates - 71)
Underwriting Income Transferred to Provident (369) -

(23) (588)
TOTAL INSURANCE
Net Earned Premium prior to Rebates 10,100 12,038
Net Ciaims 6.191 7.507
Commissions 2,269 2.381
Underwriting Resuit 1840 2,150
Credit Union Rebates = 383
Underwriting Income Transferred to Provident 313 =
Insurance Claims, Commission and Rebates 8772 10,222
Total Underwriting Result after Commission and Rebates 1,328 1816

The po

licy ligbilities have been determined by the
Appointed Actuary. Peter Davies B.Bus Sc,, FIA, FNZSA.

Theactuary is satisfied as te the accuracy of the data

from which the policy ligbilities have been determined. The
at 30 June 2018. The

Actuary's valuation was carried out in accerdance with

rt is based on doig as

actuary's re

50

sssional Standards no. 20 and 30 of the New Zealand

Society of Actuaries report and had no qualifications.

The Life ond Other insurance contracts consist of group

oroviding death, disability, redundan

y, trauma

ond bankruptcy benefits on ¢ unit roted bosis, and o

group scheme providing funeral benefits

individually rated premiums.

All cavers are written on a bas maonthly premiums
received at the end of the month. The policy licbilities

comprise the following:

clairms incurred but not reported (IBNR)

is cale

ly for Life insurance and Other

Non-life insurance (o

bility, redundancy, trauma and

bankrupltey cover p ots) respectively

- A provision for the remaining payments expected to be
made on disability, redundancy, and bankruptcy claims

that have been notified and remain open

The actuary has recommended a risk margin of nil with
-

respect to the Other Non-Life insurance Quistanding

Claims Liability

The IBNR provisions for death, disability, redundancy,
trauma and bankruptcy claims respectively have been
calculgted using o chain ladder method applied to past
claim reporting patterns, and the average size of claims

incurred in the past

The provision for open disability claims has been based
an past claim termination patterns, applied to the insured
benefit of notified claims. Claims provisions have been

discounted using an interest rate of 1. 80% per annum.

>

Il pending trauma and redundancy claims have been

provided for at their face value.




Q
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The claims estimation process commences with the
projection of the future payments relating to claims
incurred at the reporting date, The expected future
payments include those in relation to claims reperted but
not yet paid in full, claims incurred but not yet reported
(IBNR) and claims clesed that may be recpened,

The estimation of the outstanding claims liability is based

on advice from independent professional assessors. These
may be supplemented over the life of the claim by revisions,
made by experienced claims staff as the claim develops. The
estimates are reduced by actual claims payments made. A
percentage factor is added to allow for claims that are closed
at balance date but will be recpened. This is calculoted by
analysing past cloims to determine the historical incidence

of claims being reopened. An overhead and risk margin is
added to arrive at the final liability estimate

The IBNR provision is based on g conventional chain ladder
method applied to the cost of cldims reported to date in
respect of each month of loss.

An additional risk margin is maintained in the claim
provisions to ensure a gredter than 50% likelinood of the

sufficiency of the provisions. The gctuary has recommended

£107%

mergin of 10% , which provides o likelinood

a risk f sufficiency

of 75% and it has been accepted by the Board.

Insurance costs are subject te inflationary pressure over
tirme. However the period between the valuation date and
the settlement of most claims is relatively short so any
increase in costs as a result of inflation is limited. Also, due
to the short settlement periods the effect of discounting
expected future payments is also limited and with these
two elements being small and acting in opposite directions,
both have been ignored.

Expected Recoveries Receivable is calculated by
discounting the Recoveries ledger by a range of factors and
then adding on an allowance to recognise thot a porticn of
the Outstanding Claims Liability will also be recovered. The
allowance is bdsed on historical monies recovered against
claims paid.

I'he Recoveries ledger is divided into three categories;
debts where liability is ccknowledged and covered by
other insurance companies, debts where the debtor

has ocknowledged liakility and entered into a payment
arrangement. and remaining debts where the ligbility

is either disputed or no payment arrangement is yet
entered into. Recoveries Receivable from other insurers
are discounted by 20%. Receivables under paymerit
arrdngements are discounted by 40%. The discounts are
dpplied based on the past experience of the business.

2018
5000
OUTSTANDING CLAIMS LIABILITY
LIFE INSURANCE
OCpening Claims Liability B85
Claims Expense 770
Clairms Paid (776)
Closing Claims Liability 59
OTHER NON-LIFE INSURANCE
Opening Claims Liability 1,498
Claims Expense 326
Claims Paid (1.200)
Closing Claims Liability 625
MOTOR VEHICLE INSURANCE
Opening Claims Liability 1816
Claims Expense 5797
Claims Paid (8.057)
Closing Gross Claims Liability .1,558

TOTAL GROSS OUTSTANDING CLAIMS LIABILITY

2,240




2018

$000
MOTOR VEHICLE EXPECTED RECOVERIES RECEIVABLE
Opening Expected Recoveries 158
Increase In Expected Recoveries 710
Actual Third Party Recoveries Received (652)
Closing Expected Recoveries 216
Motor Vehicle Net Claims Liability 1340
TOTAL NET OUTSTANDING CLAIMS LIABILITY (CURRENT) 2,024
Outstanding claims are reported in the Statement of Financial Pesition as Outstanding Claims Liability and Expected Recoveries.

2018

$000
Composition of Outstanding Claims Liability
Life Insurance
IBNR 58
Closing Claims Liability 59
Other Non-life Insurance
Outstanding Claims 436
Indirect Claims Management Allowance - 8.5% 49
Risk Margin - Nil -
IBNR 140
Closing Claims Liability 625
Motor Vehicle Insurance
Outstanding Claims 1.089
Risk Margin - 10% 110
Indirect Clcims Management Allowance - 12.5% 151
IBNR 196
Closing Gross Claims Liability 1.556
Closing Expected Recoveries (216)
Closing Claims Liability 1340

Total Net Outstanding Claims Liability (Current) 2,024
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A key risk from operating in the insurance industry is
exposure to insurance risk arising from underwriting
insurance contracts. The insurance contracts transfer risk
to the insurer by indemnifying the policyholders against
adverse effects arising from the occurrence of specified
uncertain future events. The risk is thot the actudl claims
to be paid in relation to contracts will be different to that
estimated at the time a product was designed and priced.
The Company is exposed to this risk because the price for
a contract must be set before the losses relating to the
product are known. Henice the insurance business involves
inherent uncertainty. This risk is mitigated in the Other
Non-life insurance products as all policies are monthly
renewable and there is no effective contractual price risk.

A fundamental part ef the overall risk management
strategy is the effective governance and mianagement of
the risks that impact the amount, timing and uncertainty of
cash flows arising from insurance contracts.

(o) Capital Management Policies and Objectives

The Company is reguired to maintain a Fixed Minimum
Solvency Capital of 85,000,000 as determined under

the Solvency Standards for Life and Non-Life Insurance
Business (the sclvency staridard} issued by the RBNZ, RBNZ
defines Actual Solvency Capital as: Co-op Insurance NZ's
Capital less Intangible Assels less dividends payable on
Ordinary and Perpetual Preference Shares in the period
leading up to the filing of the RBNZ Solvency Return

“The Calculated Minimum Solvency Capital of the Company
as at 30 June 2018 was $3.685 625. Actual solvency
capital is less than the Fixed Minimum Solvency Capital
amount as at 30 June 2018. This has occurred as result of
the pricr period adjustment which is detailed elsewhere in
these accounts.

The shortfall in Calculated Minimum Saivency Capital

was rectified at the end of July 2018 with the ability for
the compdany to recognise the profit on sale of the of the
insurance boak of business $2.485m, This recognition was
triggered by the Reserve Bank approving the sale the sale
of the Company's life and non-life insurance bocoks

With the sale of the Cormpany's life and non life insurance
books as described in Note 26, and the cancellation of a
handful of remaining policies, the Fixed Minimum Solvency
Capital amount required under the RBNZ solvency started

will shortly lapse:.

(b) Capital Composition

The Company manages its capital by considering both
regulatery and econemic capital as defined in the
respective Life and Non-Life solvency standards . The

primary source of capital used by the Coempany is total
equity attributable to the owner. Total equity attributable
to the owner equates to "capital” as defined in the salvency
standard.

The Solvency Margin is calculated as actual solvency
capital less minimum solvency capital and is as follows:

30 June 2018

S
Actual Solvency Capital 3,448,524
Fixed Minimum Solvency Capital 5,000,000
Solvency Margin (1,551,476}
Solvency Ratio 69.0%

Risk management activities can be breadly separated
inte underwriting, claims mangagement, reserving and
investrment management.

The obiective of these risk management functions is to
enhance the loriger term financial performarnce of the
overall insurance operations

The key policies in place to mitigate risks arising from
underwriting insurance contracts include the following

Acceptance of Risk - the Company restricts its lines of
business primarily to Company unit rated consumer cregit
insuragnce (Life dand Other Non-Life), funeral plan and motor
vehicle insurance. The consumer credit business is sold
exclusively to the ultimgate holding entity’s Member credit
unions. Records of results end trends achieved for each seller
of insurance for all lines of business are analysed carefully
and sellers whase portfolios are returning undcceptable
levels of risk either have their price adjusted accordingly or
lose their right to sell policies for the Company.

Pricing - the primary lines of business are backed

by historica! underwriting results. This enables the
Compeny's underwriters to calculate acceptable pricing
and terms of cover.

Reinsurance - the Company does not maintain reinsurance
cover on its Life and Other Non-life risks as its historical
underwriting surpluses are such that in the Directors view
there are sufficient underwriting surpluses being generated
to be able to meet the obligations that would otherwise
have been met by a catastrophe reinsurer. The Company
has @ reinsurance programme on the Motor Vehicle risks
structured to adeqguately protect the Company’s solvency
and capital position. it covers third party property demage
and own domage catastrophe single event protection.

The Company's motor vehicle insurance provider is Swiss
Reinsurance Company Limited for ¢ signed line of 75% and




to Aspen Insurance UK Limited for a signed line of 25%.

Car

e Company Limited and Aspen Insurance

Swiss Reinsuranc

UK Limited have financial strength ratings of "AA-"and "A”
sectively. The excess of loss cover is $300,000 excess of

of

$50,000 for individual vehicle le s and SP.9m ex

$100,000 for catastrophe losses

Claims Management - claims are hondled in-house by the
Company’s own claims department. Staff are allocated

settling limits and autharities commensurate with their

levels of experience. These authority limits are reviewed
regularly. Overall authority and claims management by
experienced managers. Claims files are regularly audited

on g random basis by independent staff

Investment Management - all premium income is held in
bank accounts and short term deposits with registered
bianks or Co-op Money NZ

Geographical Spread - the Company re
and reviews its geographical spread of risk to ensure its

farly analyses

insurance operations are nol overexposed in any one region.

The insurance contracts writlen are enlered into on g

standard form and on an ir

alment or annual payment
basis. There are no special terms and conditions in dany non
stondard contracts that would have a material impact on

the financial report.

Financiol assets or ligkilities arising from insurance
controcts ore presented on the Statement of Financial
Position. These amounts best represent the maximum
credit risk exposure at reporting date. The credit risk
osure on Life and Other insurance controcts relates

exclusively to the Co-op Money NZ's Member credit uniens.
The credit risk relating to the Company's motor vehicle
insurance contracts relates primarily to premium receivable
which is due from intermediaries.

The underwriting of the disability component of the Other
Nen-life product credates an exposure to interest rate risk
“laims

becouse the termindtion dates of the outstanding

liability vary according to the term of the underlying loan
or sgvings account. However this exposure has historically

been low as approximately 30% of claims terminate within 12

rmonths. The underwriting of life and moter vehicle insurance
contracts creates ne exposure (o the risk that interest rate

movements may impoct the value of the outstanding claims
liability. The outstanding claims liakility is not discounted due

to the very short term nature of the claims

Operational risk is the risk of financial loss (including
losl opportunities) resulting from external events and/

ar inadeguate or foiled internal processes, pe

y

ople and

systerns. Operational risk is identified and assessed on

gn ongoing basis and the copital management strategy
includes consideration of operaticnal risk. Management
ond staff are responsible for identifying. assessing and
managing operational risks in accordance with their roles

and responsibilities

Sensitivily of risks relates primarily to the risk margin

assessments which are sel out above. These are reviewet

annually and ¢ rdance with current b

nange in ac L
estimates using advice of the Appointed Actuary. The

financial impact of these sensitivity changes. are:

2018
$000 $000

SENSITIVITY CALCULATIONS Balance Sensitivity
Outstanding Claims Liability 1,844
Reopening dllowance 10% higher 3
Reopening allowance 10% lower 3
Claim estimates 10% higher 184
Claim estimates 10% lower (184)
Adrinistration costs 10% higher 20
Administration costs 10% lower (20)
IBNR 388
Claim reperting 10% longer 138
Claim reporting 10% quicker 127

2,240

The Company has a Financial Strength rating of 'BB’

issued by Fitch Ratings on 27 March 2018. The
reinsurance programme is structured to adeguately

Company’s

protect the Company's sclvency and capital position. It

covers per risk and event losses in New Zealand on the
Company’'s motor vehicle insurance beck. The Counterparty
reinsurers are Swiss Reinsurance Company Ltd and Aspen

Insurance UK Ltd which have a credit rating of "AA-"and "A
respectively



8 IMPAIRMENT

2018 2017

$000 $000
Movement in Provisions in respect of:
Bad Debts Recovered 9 139
Impairment Credit =] 139
Refer to notes 15 and 16 for further information.
9 TAXATION

2018 2017

5000 $000
Profit before Taxation (2.391) 3
Income Tax at current rate of 28% -B69 1
Exempt Income B31 -118
Non Deductible Expenses - -
Movernent in Temporary Differences (not recognised) = : =
Prior Period Adjustments = =
Tax Losses not recognised (Utilisation of Tax Losses) 39 118

TAXATION EXPENSE - i

Taxation losses have been recegnised to the extent of the deferred tax liability on temporary differences. The additional tox losses have not been
recognised because there is not sufficient probabiiity of taxable profits in future years to offset such losses. Tax losses are subject to Inland Revenue
assessment in the next tax return and shareholder continuity requirements. Tax losses not recognised are $5,006.414 ($1.401.796 at the tox rate of
28%) (2017 : $5.306.148 (S1.485.722 at the tax rate of 28%)).

2018 Charged to
Opening Charged to Closing
Balance Income Balance
5000 5000 $000
Deferred Tax Assets:
Tax Losses Recognised 360 (245) us
Provisions 8 7) 1
368 (252) 1use

Deferred Tax Liabilities:

Intangible Assets = = =

Deferred Acquisition Costs = = =

- 252 -
2017 Charged to
Opening Charged to Closing
Balance Income Balance
$000 $000 $000
Deferred Tax Assets:
Tax Losses Recognised 281 69 360
Provisions 8 © 8
289 69 368
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Intangible Assets (31) (8) (39)
Deferred Acquisition Costs (268) (53] (329)

(299) (69) (368)




10 BASE CAPITAL NOTES

Econemic Entity and Association

2018 2017 2018 2017

‘000 Units ‘000 Units $000 $000
Issue | 1 1 110 110
Issue Il 13,585 13.585 13.585 13,585
13,586 13,5986 13,695 13,695

The Rules of the Association provide for the creation of the Association Business Services Division Trust (the “Business Services Division”). Base
Capital Notes are those unsecured subordinated Capital Notes forming the capital of the Business Services Division. All notes qualify for Dividends as

determined by the Directors.

Economic Entity and Association

2018 2017 2018 2017
‘000 Units ‘000 Units $000 $000
Issue |
Balance at 1 July 11 3 110 130
Notes redeemed by transfer to Base Capital Notes || - 2) - (20)
Balance at 30 June 11 11 110 110
Economic Entity and Association
2018 2017 2018 2017
‘000 Units ‘000 Units $000 $000
Issue Il
Balance at 1 Jduly 13,585 13,565 13,585 13,565
Notes Issued:
By transfer from Base Capital Notes | - 20 - 20
Notes Redeemed - = - =
Balance at 30 June 13,585 13,585 13,585 13,585

Base Capital Notes Issue Il have a face value of $1.

Base Capital Notes Issues constitute unsecured subordinated obligations of the Business Services Division and rank pari passu and without priority or

preference among themselves.

The obligations of the Business Services Division to the Base Capital Noteholders are contained in the Regulations of the Business Services Division.

11 ACCUMULATED LOSSES

2018 2017
(Restated)

$000 $000
Balance at 1 July (482) (180)
Operating Profit (2,391 3
2.873) az7)
Base Capital Note Dividends - (305)
Balance at 30 June (2.873) (482)
TOTAL ACCUMULATED LOSSES (2,873) (482)

The net (loss)/profit for the years ended 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017 have been transferred to Retained Earnings/(Accumulated Losses




2018 2017

$ooo $000
Member Services Division 32 343
Business Services Division (2.805) (825)
(2,873) (482)

Member Services Division Retained Earnings at 30 June 2018 includes the Retained Earnings of the New Zealand Credit Union Foundation of $105,000

(30 June 2017 : $104,000). Refer note 31.

12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2018 2017

$000 $000
Cash at Bank = 3,266
Bank Call Deposits = 13,331
- 16,597
Bank Overdraft (1.152) -
(1152) i

13 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

2018 2017

$000 $000
Trade Receivables = 424
Future Funded Premiums 1606 9,600
Insurance Premiums Due - 424
Provision for Cancellation = s
- 424
Total Carrying Amount 1,606 9,600

Trade Receivables are mainly due from Member credit unions. There is no Provision for Bad Debts (2017 : SNil) and there has been no write off (2017 :

SNil) in respect of bad and doubtful debts.

The average credit period is 30 days. Apart from the above, none of the past due receivables have been provided for because past experience

indicates that such amounts are generally recoverable.

In respect of the Economic Entity, there is no provision for cancellation for cutstanding insurance premiums relating to policies issued by Co-op

Insurance NZ (2017 : SNil).

14 INVESTMENTS

Economic Entity

2018 2017

$000 $000
Bank Deposits 11,348 44503
Advances to Customer 4,234 2,252
Investment Securities 15,583 46,755




1S PREPAYMENTS

2018 2017

$000 $000
Deferred Commission Costs - 859
Commission Costs Paid - 2,667
Commission Costs Released > (2,449)
Closing Deferred Commission Costs £ 1177
Other Prepayments 507 586
507 1763

Cormmission costs represent seller and agency commissions paid to third parties to ocquire insurance pelicies. Commissions are paid upon receipt of
premium and expensed over the life of the policy.

16 INVENTORY

2018 2017

$000 $000
ATM Machines and Parts 33 33
Promotional and Other ltems 50 41

83 74

The cost of inventcries recognised as an expense during the year was $342,000 (2017 : $482,000).
17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2018 2017

$000 $000
Furniture and Fittings. Office Equipment and Vehicles
Opening Cost at 1 July 685 682
Additions 26 6
Disposals (23) (4]
Closing Cost at 30 June 688 697
Opening Accumuloted Depreciation at 1 July 501 440
Depreciation Expense 64 BB
Disposals (16 ()]
Closing Accumulated Depreciation at 30 June 549 505
Net Book Value at 30 June 139 192
Computer Equipment
Opening Cost at 1 July 1811 1,499
Additions 142 328
Disposals = =
Closing Cost at 30 June 1953 1827
Opening Accumulated Depreciation at 1 July 1193 884
Depreciation Expense 328 323
Disposals = ol
Closing Accumulated Depreciation at 30 June 1521 1,207
Net Book Value at 30 June 432 620
Carrying Amount at 30 June 571 812




18 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2018 2017
$000 $000
Computer Software
Opening Cost at 1 duly 10,668 8421
Additions 2703 3575
Disposals - 74)
Closing Cost at 30 June 13.371 nsge22
Opening Accumulated Amortisation at 1 July 4,050 4,241
Armortisation Expense 726 676
Disposals = (74)
Closing Accumulated Amortisation at 30 June 4776 4,843
Net Book Value at 30 June 8,595 7,079
There were no material impairment losses in respect of computer software.
19 DEPOSITS RECEIVED
2018 2017
$000 $000
Deposits from Credit Unions 12,481 38,099
Depaosits from Other Parties 2,021 18,021
14,502 56,120
Deposits are accepted on an unsecured basis. Average interest rates, repricing terms and duration are as shown in note 27
20 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
2018 2017
$000 $000
Trade Payables 1,729 2147
Credit Unicn Rebates = 404
Accrued Expenses 222 841
Reinsurance Accruals = 85
GST Payable 1951 3277
3,277 3,656
21 PROVISIONS
2018 2017
$000 $000
Employee Entitlements 297 415
297 415
22 LEASES
2018 2017
$000 $000
Non Cancellable Operating Lease Payments
Lease liabilities are payable:
Not later than 1 year 433 526
Later than 1 year and not later than 2 years 350 1058
Later than 2 years and not later than 5 years 1137 794
1,920 2,378




24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Co-op Money NZ's Finance and Central Banking
departments provide services to the Economic Entity
entities, including co-ordinating access to funding,
providing banking facilities, and managing external barking

relationships. Services also include advice, assistance and
s Lo the Boards of the

Controlling Entity and the
ontrolled Entities in relation to financial risks relating to
the operations of the Economic Entity. These risks include
market risk (including interest rate risk and price risk), credit
risk and liguidity risk. These services are augmented by
specialist advice to the appropriate Boards from within

the entity or its external advisors, for example in relation

te underwriting risk. Co-op Money NZ reviews the activity

of its Centre
Ligb
Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed by

Sanking department by an Asset and

ty Management Committee which meets bi-monthly.

the interrial auditors on a continuous basis. The Eco

QmMmic

Entity does not enter intc or trade financial instruments for
speculative purposes.

The Economic Entity manages its copital resources to
ensure that entities in the Economic Entity will be able
te withstand the assessed business and financial risks

appropriate to their operatien. In the case of Economic

Entity Controlied Entities with an external market focus, the

ievel of capital investrment is determined by reference to
markel norms and the requirements of external agencies
such os rating agencies or regulators. In the case of Co-

op Money NZ the required level of capital investment is
determined by means of a departmenta! analysis applying
arange of methodologies appropriate to the risk profile

of the key operations. These include but are not limited to
the minirmum capital cdeguacy measures for New Zealand
nor-bank depesit takers: In the case of Co-op Insurance

NZ, the required level of capital investment is determined by

adding @ margin te the minimum sclvency capital amount

as measured by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand's life and

non-life solvency standards. The Economic Entity meets
its objectives for managing caopital by formally reviewing
its available capital in relation o ils risks at least once per

annum cr more freguently if required.

Luring the year the Econemic Entity may commit to

foreign exchange contracts to reduce risk involved in the
purchasing of goods or services in foreign currencies. Al
30 June 2018, the Economic Entity had foreign exchange

contracts to cover purchase orders and inveices due of Nil
(2017: AUDLS8,243 and USD138,281). The Profit/Loss at
30 June 2018 wads Nil (2017: NZD1.140)

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss to Co~op Meney NZ arising
from adverse changes in interest rates. This exposure in
respect of on-Balance Sheet Assets and Liabilities depends
on the degree of mismatch between the value of interest.
sensitive ossets and liabilities that are repricing; where
repricing refers to the event when the interest ratle attached
to an gssel or liability is reset. Co-op Money NZ controls

its exposure to interest rate risk by actively managing this
rmismatch within Board approved policy.

The sensilivity analyses below have been determined
rates for both derivatives

based on the exposure to interes
and non derivative instruments ot balance date. For

floating rate liabilities, the anaiysis is prepared assuming
chility outstanding at balance date was

the amount
outstanding for the whole year. A lL_‘O pbasis point increcse
or decrease represents managem ent's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates,




ort 2018

The follewing tables detail the Economic Entity's and Association’s interest rate repricing profile:
_/ mi:if Iée:;:rt‘:: mor?ths 1-2 years Yi;f 3 S+ years Intr:?;st Echnr;%r:‘c
Rate to 1lyear Sensitive Total
'ﬂ 6 At 30 June 2018 $000 $S000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Assets
Cashand Cash Equivolents 107% 2092 - = £ z B 2,092
Accounts Receivable - = - - - - 7765 7765
investment Securities 2.66% 14,816 667 = - = = 15,583
i Non-current Deposit - - - - - - 147 147
2y 17,008 667 - - = 7912 25,587
Liabilities
Deposits Received 2.54% 11,602 2,900 = - - - 14,502
Accounts Payable = = = = = = 3674 3,674
z neo2 2.900 = = - 3.674 18,176
? ! ?;:gr:::g:;ﬂ Interest Sensitivity Gap = 5406 (2.233) = » < 4238 7.411
k3 miﬁgs ls-erf\i:t‘:: mor?ths 1-2 years yi;srs S+ years Int':-(r?;st E‘I:Ec:'\ll(i)tr:lc
4 Rate to lyear Sensitive Total
At 30 June 2017 $000 $000 $000 $S000 $000 $000 $000
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.368% 16,597 - - - - - 186,597
i~ Accounts Receivable - = - = = 2 9,600 9,600
Investment Securities 3.27% 29,631 17124 = = = = 48,755
: Non-current Deposit = = - = = = 147 147
46,228 17124 % - = 9,747 73,099
Liabilities
Deposits Received 2.38% 42850 11697 1573 = = = 56,120
Accounts Payable = = - - = = 3277 3277
=~ 42,850 11,697 1578 = - 3277 59,397
On Balance Sheet Interest Sensitivity Gap e 3378 5427 1573) = = 6.470 13.702

- 30 June 2017

Co-op Money NZ offers an interest rate swap facility to Credit Unions. Itis Co-op Meney NZ's policy to econemically hedge this risk as it arises by
entering into back to back matching transactions with Bank counterparties. There were no transactions outstanding (2017 : Nil).




Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default

on its contractugal Cs‘oligcmon-a resulting in financial toss to

the Economic Entity.

Risk is minimised by the maintenance of a well diversified
investment portfolio with controls over maturity,

counterparty and concentration of investments. All

investments in the CU GroupTrust are cuthoerised by the
Co-op Money NZ Board. Investments under taken directly by

& e with non rated

ounterparties and for a smc sublimit of $5 million for
A% rated New Zealand Banks, musl be with counterparties
holding @ minimum credit rating of A2 (short term) er BBB

(long

term) from Standard & Poors’ or an equivatent rating
cifically appr

Association. A moximum of 15% of

s otherwise sp

agency unle d by the

Boord of the Ceritral
Bonking controlled investment portfolio may be invested at

any time with non rated counterparties

Accounts receivables are concentrated armongst Credit

Unions.

The carrying amounts of financial assets recorded in the

financial statements, which are net of impairment losses,

represent the Economic Entity’s moximum exposure to

creditr

Liguidity Risk is
difficulty in meeting commitrnents asscciated with its

e risk that the Econemic Entity will have
finarciol liabilities and future commitrnents. The Ec

E
sufficient liguid funds to meet its commitments bas

ty manages its exposure te liquidity risk by maint

on histerical and forecast cash flow needs. Controlled

Entity companies, with the exception of Co-op Insurance
NZ, are IG._{I.HH’G to maintain their bank accounts and
place all surplus liguidity with Co-op Money NZ's Central
Banking d artn“t:\m. Co-op Insurance NZ places its

surplus HJuM\L\/ with a ran ge of counterparties including

the Asso lion in accordance with its own policy. The

ntral Hmkw’ng r.'jepor'rrmer:‘., Is: e e for all external

banking and funding relationships. Through this level of

cenitralised control, the Economic Entity monitors its overal
licjuic
from operating octivities toking account of the cash flow

ty position on a daily basis and forecasts cash flows

characteristics and expected volatility in the balances of

the various ¢l

ses of recognised assets and liabilities
budgetea and forecast cash flows and seasonal cash
cycles. The activity and risk exposure limits of the Central

Banking department is detailed in a policy manual which is
reviewed annually by the Co-op Money NZ Board. Amongst

other malters, the policy manual addresses areas witha

specific bearing on liquidity such as Investment Constrain
and Lending Constraints. The

least 30% (2017 : 30%) of investments must be capable of

is

Jires that at

-y rmanual re

being liguidated within five days

The following tables detail the Economic FﬁTHy s

remaining contractual maturity for their fin
and ligbilities. The tables have been drawn up based
on the undisceunted cash flows of financial dssets
and liabilities based en the earliest date on which the
Economic Entity can be reguired to Quy. The table

incluges both interest and principal cash flows




t 2018

Less than 3 2-5 Econc_)mic
Note 3 months t??r;’:r;sr 1-2 years years 5+ years I.Ergtl‘:?r

2018 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,092 = = = = 2.082
Accounts Receivable 47279 2214 1136 126 - 7765
Investrnent Securities 14916 667 - - - 15,583
Loans Receivable = = = = = =
Non-current Deposit = - = s 147 147
Future Interest Receivable 108 38 = = = 141
Total Financial Assets 21.395 2.914 1136 136 147 25728
Liabilities
Deposits Received 11,602 2,800 = = = 14,502
Accounts Payable 3.674 = = = = 3,674
Future Interest Payable 12 54 = = = 66
Unearned Premium Liability 1223 2,000 1056 127 - 4,406
Outstanding Claims Liability 2,240 - = = = 2,240
Total Financial Liabilities 18.751 4,954 1,058 127 - 24,888
Net Financial Assets 2,644 (2.041) 80 10 147 840
Unrecognised Commitments 28 (1) (63) = = = @7
Net Liquidity Gap at 30 June 2018 2,631 (2.104) 80 10 147 763
2017
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 18,587 = = = = 186,597
Accounts Receivable 4,204 3462 1934 - = 9,600
Investrnent Securities 29,631 17124 = S = 48,755
Non-current Deposit 74 = 2 73 = 147
Future Interest Receivable 301 452 = 7 5 753
Total Financial Assets 50,807 21,038 1,934 73 73,852
Liabilities
Deposits Received 42,850 11697 1573 = - 56,120
Accounts Payable 3877 = = = = 3.277
Future Interest Payable 342 38 = = = 380
Unedrned Premium Liability 1470 27418 1662 700 = 6,580
Qutstanding Claims Liability 3.380 =2 = = = 3,380
Total Financial Liabilities 51319 14,483 3,235 700 - 69,737
Net Financial Assets (512) B.555 (1.301) (B27) - 4115
Unrecognised Commitrents 28 (B8,651) (2.322) (1.245) % = (10.218)
Net Liquidity Gap at 30 June 2017 (7.163) 4,233 (2.548) (627) = (6.103)

The Economic Enlity has access Lo financing facilities of $7.600,000 (2017 -

over interest bearing Investments. The Economic Entity expects to meet its obligations from operating cash flows and

proceeds of maturing financial assets.

$7.600,000). The focilities are secured by charges




Ihe Directors consider that the carrying amount of financial

d financial liabilities r ded ot amortised cost in

the finoncial statements approximate thejr fair values

In accordance with F

ymic Entity

provides an analysis of financial instruments thot are Cash and Cash Eguivalents are balances held with financial
measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, institutions at current interest rates on
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the in 1ts and approximate fair value

fair value is observable: S B v
stments with Banks consist of term deposits and

: dvane my clistamers invectad ¢ narket re ~oolicable
Level 1 fair value m davanc to customers invested at market rates app icable

gt the time of investment. The investments bear interest

setween 2.75% and 3.40%. (2017: 2.83% to 3.70%).

quoted prices (unadjus

or liabiliti

ed are the short term ligkilities

are those derived from

Level 2 fcir value measuremer

0 ~erarrie Ernfity by Mermber ¢ it unions
inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 thot conomic Entity by Member credit unions,

stomers on which the Economic

, either dire

r the asse dir

prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). Entity pays interest. The balance reported approximates

eir fair values.

Level 3 fair value mea

valuation technigues that lude inputs for the asset or

liability that are nol based on cbservable market data

e inputs)

Financial Instruments by Category Economic Entity

2018 2017
$000 $000
Cash and Cash equivalents = 16,597

Accounts Receivable 7,765 9,600
Loans Receivable = =

Investments 5583 46,755

Total Loans and Receivables 23,348 723852

Total Financial Assets 23,348 72,8952

Other Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost = =

Deposits Received 14,502 56.120

Accounts Payable 1951 3.277

Total Other Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost 16,453 59.397

Total Financial Liabilities 16,453 59,397
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25 INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Controlled Entities controlled at 30 June

Association Percentage & s Balance
Hroe Holding at Balance Date Pringipl Activities Date
2018 2017
CU Securities Limited as Trustee of the CU Group Trust 100% 100% Corporate Trustee 30 June

Provision of services t
FACTS Limited (trading as Co-op Services NZ) 100% fogg O =lonoTsanvices o BReRE
non Mermbers

Credit Union Insurance Limited (trading as Co-op Insurance NZ) 100% 100% Insurance Underwriter 30 Jure
Credit Union Services Limited 100% 100% Non Trading 30 June
Credit Unicn New Zealand Limited 100% 100% Non Trading 30 June

The Controlling Entity and all its Controlled Entities are incorperated in New Zealand
and their place of business is Level 3 25 Teed Street, Newmarket, Auckland.
There are no significant restrictions on any of the Controlled Entities.

26 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The Controelling Entity in the consoliddted entity is the New

Zealand Association of Credit Unicns (Co-op Money NZ). The compensation of the Directors and executives, being

=ment personnel of the entity, is se

Details of the equity interests held in Controlled Entities are ——— oLy
disclosed in notes 26. Co-op Money NZ does not hold any $000 $o000
other equity interests Short Term Employee Benefits 2,042 1847
The Directors and staff of the Economic Entity may insure There were no other payrments made to Key Managemerit
with Co-op Insurance NZ. Personnel.
27 COMMITMENTS
2018 2017
$000 $000
Undrawn advances under credit facilities 4,041 68.606
Capital expenditure 77 2416
4118 9,022

28 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Co-op Insurance NZ as vendor and Co-op Money NZ as gudrantor have received a warranty claim from Provident in

relation to the Sale of Co-op Insurance’s bock of business, the level of claim has not been quantified. This ¢

“lairm is based

upon the impact of the prior period adjustment on sale price paid by Provident. Provident have also raised issues around
the rebustness and accuracy of Co-op insurance's systems. Co-op Insurance NZ has refuted the warranty claim and would
intend to vigerously defend itself should any further action arise. Legel advice received supports the Director’s belief that the

claim is without merit.




29 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of Net Profit After Tax to Net Operating Cash Flows

2018 2017
$000 $000
(Loss)/Profit after Tax (2,391 3
Adjustments to reconcile operating profit to net cash flow from operating activities
Add/(less) non cash items:
Depreciation 385 507
Amortisation 898 559
Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment @) =
1289 1066
Add/(less) movernent in Working Capital:
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventory (¢S)] 49
Increase in Accounts Receivable and Expected Recoveries 1834 (1.589)
Increase in Prepayments 954 (316)
Decreagse in Accounts Payable 396 824)
Increase in Unearned Premium Liability (1.967) 2.009
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions (113) 5
Increase in Qutstanding Claims Liability (1198) 355
(103) (3822)
Add/(less) items classified as Investing Activities
Non Cash movement in Investments 1,353 ®7)
Add items included within Financing Activities:
Non Cash movement in Deposits Received (250) &7
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (102) 747

Cash receipts and payments from Deposits Received have been netted in the Statement of Cash Flows as the cash flows reflect the activities of the
Economic Entity’s custorer, rather than those of the Economic Entity.

30 NEW ZEALAND CREDIT UNION FOUNDATION

s of the New Zealar

cseterraetevrsed € -~ " R R oo s
-gdministered func s r Set 5 Divis

tion,

v of the Associc shed pursuant to the Ru

it Unions both in New Zeoland and

ciation with the cbjective of promoting and as

ssisting in the development of C
overseas. It is administered by a Board of up to five Foundation Managers appointed by the Board of Co-op Money NZ.
2018 2017
$000 $000
Current Assets
Cash 105 104
NET ASSETS 105 104
Inciuded in the financial statements are the following incorme and expenses relating to the New Zealand Credit Unien

Foun

Grants poid 1 (10)
OPERATING SURPLUS/(LOSS) 1 (10)




31 MEMBER SERVICES DIVISION OPERATING PROFIT

2018 2017

$000 $000
New Zealand Credit Union Foundation 1 10
MSD Operations 32 452)
TOTAL 33 (482)

32 CORRECTION OF ERROR IN ACCOUNTING FOR FUTURE FUNDED PREMIUMS

“In Nevember 2017 the Company undertock a detailed review cf its premium collection system and discovered an error in

the policy cancellation process. As a conseguence, it was determined that insurance premiums of certdin cancelled policies
had been incorrectly recognised. The error has been corrected by restating each of the affected financial statement lines
for the prior periocd s per the table below. The Company has alse presenhted an opening Statement of Financial Position in

accordance with NZ IAS 1"

Statement of Financial Position 30 June 2017 Increase/ 30 June 2017 1 July 2016 Increase/ 1 July 2016
(Decrease) (Restated) (Decrease) (Restated)
S S =] S S S
Future Funded Premium 8,155,343 (1.018.876) 7.138.467 5661573 (252577) 5,408,996
Accurmulated Deficit (12.791,527) (1,018,876) (13.810,403) (12,327,667) (252.577) (12.580.244)
Net Assets/Total Equity 5708473 (1.018.8/6) 4,688,597 8,172,333 (252,577) 5918,756
. Increase/ FY 2017
t tat
Underwriting Income Statement FY 2017 (Decivczs) (Restated)
Gross Written Premium 14,313,068 (766,299) 13,546,769
Underwriting and Statement of FY 2017 Increase/ FY 2017
Comprehensive Income (Decrease) (Restated)
Motor Vehicle 177,830 (768,299) (588,469)

Total Comprehensive loss for the year (338,860) (766,299) (1105,159)




33 INSURANCE PRODUCTS RELATING TO 2017

The Life and Other insurance conbrac t of group

schemes providing death, disability, redundancy; traurna
and bankruptcy benefits on o unit rated basis, and a

group scheme providing funeral benefits on the basis of
individually rated premiums

All covers are written on @ basis of monthly premiums
received at the end of the month. The policy liabilities
comprise the following

- A provision for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) is
calculated separately for Life insurance and Other Non-life
insurance (disability, redundancy, trauma and bankruptcy

caver products) respectively

- A provision for the remaining payments expected to be
made on disability, re i
have been rctified and rer

ndancy, and bankrupte

¥

naimn apean.

Theactuary has recommended a risk margin of ril with
respect to the Cther Non-Life insurance Outstanding
Claims Liability

The IBNR provisions for death. disability, redundancy,

traume and bankruptey claims respectively have been

calcutated using @ chain ladder method applied to po
claim reporting patterns, and the average size of claims

incurred in the past

The provision for open disability claims has been based
on past claim termination patterns, applied to the insured

penefit of notified claims. Claims provisions have been

discounted using an interest rate of 2.07%.

All pending trauma and redundancy claims have been

provided for at their face value.

The claims estimation process commences with the

projection of th ture payments relating to claims
incurred at the reporting date: The expected future
ported but

not yet paid in full, claims incurred but not yet reported

payments include those in relation to claims r

(IBNR) and claims closed that miay be respened

The estimation of the outstanding claims liokility is based

ss0rs. These

on advice from independent professional ass

may be supplemented over the life of the claim by revisions,

made by experienced claims staff as the claim develops

The estimates are reduced by actual claims payments
made. A percentage factor is added to allow for claims
that are closed at balance date but will be reopened. This
is calculated by analysing past claims to determine the

historical incidence of claims bClP’J recpened An overhec

and risk margin is added to arrive at the final liokility

estimale

wentional chain ladder

Ihe IBNR provision is base

method applied to the cost of claims reported to date in
ect of each month of loss

An additional risk margin is maintained in the claim
provisions to ensurea greater than 50% likelihood of the
sufficiency of the provisions. The actuary has recommended

a risk margin of 10%. which provides a likelihood of
sufficiency of 76% and it has been accepted by the Board.

Insurance costs are subject to inflaticnary pressure over
time. However the period between the valuation date and
the settlement of most claims is relatively short so ony
incregse in costs as a result of inflation is limited. Also, due
the effect of discounting
expected future payments is also limited and with these

to the short seltlement pericds

two elements being small and acting in opposite directicns,
both have been ignored.

Expected Recoveries Receivable is calculated by
discounting the Recoveries ledger by a range of factors und
then adding on an allowance to recognise that a portion of
the Cutstanding Claims Liability will also be recovered. The
allowance is based en historical monies recovered against

claims paid

The Recoveries ledger is divided into three categories;
debts where lighiiity is acknowledged and covered by
other insurance companies, debts where the debtor
has acknowledged liability and entered inlo a payment
arrangement, and remaining debts where the liability
is either disputed or no payment arrangement is yet
entered into. Recoveries Receivable from other insurers
are discounted by LO% Receivables under poyment
arrangements are discounted by 40%. The d|b counts are
applied based on the past experience of the business.



@
&
2017
$000
s Life Insurance
Opening Claims Liability 117
Claims Expense lo22
Claims Paid (1.074)
B Closing Claims Liability 65
] Other Non-life Insurance
i Opening Claims Liability 1810
_ e Claims Expense 1456
< Claims Paid (1L767)
5 Closing Claims Liability 1499
= U Motor Vehicle Insurance
e o Opening Claims Liability 1.032
) Claims Expense 5573
' Claims Paid (4.789)
l i Closing Gross Claims Liability 1816
l Total Gross Outstanding Claims Liability 7c 3,380
,-: Motor Vehicle Expected Recoveries Receivable
I Opening Expected Recoveries a2
Increase In Expected Recoveries 548
Actual Third Party Recoveries Received 482)
Closing Expected Recoveries 7d 158
Motor Vehicle Net Claims Liability 1658
Total Net Outstanding Claims Liability (Current) 3.222
Qutstanding claims are reported in the Staterment of Financial Position as Outstanding Claims Liability and Expected Recoveries,
2017
$000
Life Insurance
IBNR 65
Closing Claims Liability 65
Other Non-life Insurance
Outstanding Claims 1241
Indirect Claims Management Allowance - 8.5% 18
Risk Margin - Nil =
IBNR 140
Closing Claims Liability 1499
Motor Vehicle Insurance
Outstanding Claims 1322
Risk Morgin - 10% 132
Indirect Claims Management Allowance - 12.5% 182
IBNR 180
Closing Gross Claims Liability 1816
Closing Expected Recoveries (158)
Closing Claims Liability 1658

Total Net Outstanding Claims Liability (Current) 3,222




A key risk from operdting in the insurance industry is

exposure (o insurance risk arising from underwriting

rrisk
JET l"yl de "T*"I!\/i'"\q the po ‘i”‘)/:’I!;‘-ri'Jer‘._w C?CI\FWE{

insurance contracts. The insurc trans

to the ins
adverse effects arising from the cccurrence of specified

uncertain future events. The risk is that the actual claims

to be paid in relation to contracts will be different to that

estimated at the time a o

uct was designed and priced

The Company is exposed (o this risk becouse the price for

must be set before the losses relating to the

precuct are known. Hence the insurance business involves
inherent uncertainty. This risk is mitigated in the Other
Non-life insurance products as ¢ll policies are monthly

renewable and there is no effective contractual

Afundamental part of the overall risk management

strategy is the effective governance and meonagement
the risks that impact the amount, timing and uncertainty of
cash flows arising from insurance contracts.

(a) Capital Management Policies and Objectives
The Company is reguired to maintain o Fixed Minimum

=

5,000,000 as determined under

Solve

ey Capital of
olvency SECJFW('JU.‘\

e Insurar
ued by the RBNZ. RBNZ
defines Actual Solvency Capital os: C 3 Insurance NZ's

R - e
or Lite and Non-L

Business (the solvency standard) i

Capital less Intangible Assets less dividends payable on
Ordinary ond Perpetual Preference Shares in the periad

leading up to the filing of the RBNZ Solvency Return

"The Recalculated Minimum Solvency Capital of the
June 2017 $4 554,704, Actua! solvency
capital cppeared to be less than the Fixed Minimum

Company as ot 30

Solvency Capital amount as at 30 June 2017. This has

occurred as result of the priory od adjustment which is

nerein whes;e c:::coamts.

apital
he end of July 2018 with the ability for
qrw the profit on sale of the of the

The shortfall in

Calculated Minimum Solvency C
wos rectified at
the company to re

insurance book of business $S2.485m. This recognition was

;
‘,.

> sale

triggered by the Reserve Bank cpproving the sale tt
of the Company's life and non-life insurance books

With the sale of the Compeany’s life and non life ir
books as described in Note
handful of remaining policies, the Fixed Minirmurm Solvency

rance
26, and the cancellation of a

Capital ameount reguired under the RENZ solvency started
will shortly lapse.”

(b) Capital Composition

>gulatory and economic -::opitol as de

Life and Non-Lifé solvency standards . The pmmur"\ source
f capital used by the Campany is total equity att

the ¢

Total eguity attricutable te

1s defined in the solvency ston

The Selvency Margin is calculated as actual sclvency

capital less minimum solvency copitol and is as follows:
P y cap

30 June 2017

S
Actual Selvency Capital 4,228,745
Fixed Minimum Solvency Capital 5,000,000
Solvency Margin ( 771,255)
Solvency Ratio 84.6%

Risk rmanagement activities con be broadly separated

into underwriting, claims management, reserving and

investment management

The objective of these risk management functions is to
nhance the loriger term financial performance of the

overall insurance operations

The key policies in place to mitigate risks arising from
underwriting insurance contracts include the following

Acceptance of Risk - the Compuany restricis its lines of
business primarily to Company unit rated consurmer credit
rsurance (Life and Other Nan-Life), funeral plan and motor

vehicle i ance. | consumer credit business is sold

excl

sively to the uitimate holding entity's Member credit
s of results and trends achieved for each seller

unions. Rex
of insurance for all lines of business are analysed carefully
and seller

whose portfolios are returning unccceptable

levels of risk either have their price adjusted cccordingly or

lose their right to sell policies for the Company

are backed by

Prlcmg - the primary lines of busines
histerical underwriting res

ults. This enables the Company's
underwriters to calculate acceptable pricing and terms of
COVer.

Reinsurance - the Company does not maintain reinsurance

cover on its Life and Other Non-life risks as its historical

urpluses are such that in the Directors view

underwriting
there are sufficienl underwriting surpluses being generated
to be able to meet the obkligations that would otherwise
have been met by a catastrophe reinsurer. The Company
has a reinsurance programme on the Motor Vehicle risks

structured to adeguately protect the Company's solvency

and capital position. It covers third party property damage
and own damage cotastrophe single event protection

The Company's metor vehicle insurance provider is Swiss

Reinsurance Company Limited for a signed line of 75% and

to Aspen Inst

srarice UK Limited for o signed line of 25%

Swiss Reinsurance Company Limited and A"FJE‘W Insurance
AA-" and

S Z'EBOD_OOC*

UK Limited have financicl strength ratir

A" respectively. The excess of loss cover Is

000 for individual vehicle los:




Claims Management - claims are hondled in-house by the
Cempany's own claims department. Staff are allocated
seltling limits and cuthorities commensurate with their
levels of experience. These authority limits are reviewed
reqularly. Overall authority and claims management by
experienced managers, Claims files are regularly audited
on arandom basis by independent staff.

Investment Management - oll premiurm income is held in
bank accounts and short term deposits with registered
banks or Co-op Money NZ.

Geographical Spread - the Company regularly analyses
and reviews its geographical spread of risk to ensure its
insurance operations are not overexposed in'any cne region.

Terms and Conditions of Insurance Contracts - (he
insurance contracts written are entered into on o standard
form and on an instalment or annual payment basis. Theré
are no special terms and conditions in any non standard
contracts that would have o material impact on the
financial report

Credit Risk - financial assets or lighilit

s arising from
insurance contracts dre presented on the Statement of

Financial Position. These amounts best represent the
maximum credit risk exposure at reporting date. The credit

o credit unions.

e credit risk relating to the Company's motor vehicle

Insurance contrac

s relates primarily to premium receivable

which is due from intermediaries

Interest Rate Risk - the underwriting of the disability
component of the Other Non-life product creates an

exposure o interest rate risk because the lermingtion gates

of the outstanding claims liability vary according to the term
of the underlying loan or savings account. However this
exposure has historically been low os approximately 30% of
claims termingte within 12 months. The underwriting of life
and motor vehicle insurance contracls cregtes no exposure
to the risk that interest rate movements may impact the
value of the outstonding claims liability. The cutstanding
claims ligbility is not discounted due to the very short term

nature of the claims

Operational Risk - operational risk is the risk of financial
loss (including lost opportunities) resulting from external

events and/or inadequate or Tailea internal processes,
people and systems, Operational risk is identified and
assessed on an engeing bosis and the capital management
strategy includes consideration of operational risk.
Management and staff are responsible for identifying,
assessing and managing operational risks in accordance
with their roles and responsibilities.

Sensitivity of risks relates primarily to the risk margin
assessments which are set out above. These are reviewed
annually and change in gccordance with current best
estimates using advice of the Appointed Actuary. The
financial impact of these sensitivity changes are:

30 June 2017
$000 $000
Balance Sensitivity

Outstanding Claims Liability 2,985
Reopening allowance 10% higher 3
Recpening allowance 10% lower 3
Claim estimates 10% higher 253
Claim estimates 10% lower (289)
Administration costs 10% higher 20
Administration costs 10% lower (20)
IBNR 385
Claim reporting 10% longer 135
Claim reporting 10% quicker 123)

3,380

The Company hds d Financial Strength rating of 'BBB-
"issued by Fitch Ratings on 17 Décernber 2017, The
Company's reinsurance programme is structured to
adeguately protect the Company's solvency and cagital
sosition. 1L covers per risk and event losses in New Zeoland
on the Company's moter vehicle insurance book. The
Counterparty reinsurers dre Swiss Reinsurance Comparny
Ltd and Aspen Insurance UK Ltd which have a credit rating
of "AA-"and "A" respectively

34 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Reserve Bank granted approval to transfer the Non-Life Business to Provident Insurance Corporation Limited on 23 July

2018 and the transfer was completed. Subsequently the Reserve bank also granted approval to transfer the Life Insurance
Business (funeral plan pelicies) to Pinnacle Life Limited on 8 August 2018. Co-op Insurance NZ had mdde an application to
RBNZ to cancel its Life insurance license and is now awaiting RBNZ's consideration. An application to cancel the Non Lite

Insurance license to RBNZ will be made soon.
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